
 

 

 
 
 

Council 
 
 
 

Wednesday 4 July 2018 

2.00 pm 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 
 

The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

COUNCIL 

 

Wednesday 4 July 2018, at 2.00 pm 
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 

 

The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 
 

MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 
 

THE LORD MAYOR (Councillor Magid Magid) 
THE DEPUTY LORD MAYOR (Councillor Tony Downing) 

 

1 Beauchief & Greenhill Ward 10 East Ecclesfield Ward 19 Nether Edge & Sharrow Ward 
 Simon Clement-Jones 

Bob Pullin 
Richard Shaw 
 

 Andy Bainbridge 
Moya O'Rourke 
Steve Wilson 
 

 Mohammad Maroof 
Jim Steinke 
Alison Teal 

2 Beighton Ward 11 Ecclesall Ward 20 Park & Arbourthorne Ward 
 Chris Rosling-Josephs 

Ian Saunders 
Sophie Wilson 
 

 Roger Davison 
Shaffaq Mohammed 
Paul Scriven 
 

 Julie Dore 
Ben Miskell 
Jack Scott 

3 Birley Ward 12 Firth Park Ward 21 Richmond Ward 
 Denise Fox 

Bryan Lodge 
Karen McGowan 
 

 Abdul Khayum 
Alan Law 
Abtisam Mohamed 
 

 Mike Drabble 
Dianne Hurst 
Peter Rippon 
 

4 Broomhill & Sharrow Vale Ward 13 Fulwood Ward 22 Shiregreen & Brightside Ward 

 Michelle Cook 
Magid Magid 
Kaltum Rivers 

 Sue Alston 
Andrew Sangar 
Cliff Woodcraft 
 

 Dawn Dale 
Peter Price 
Garry Weatherall 
 

5 Burngreave Ward 14 Gleadless Valley Ward 23 Southey Ward 
 Jackie Drayton 

Talib Hussain 
Mark Jones 
 

 Lewis Dagnall 
Cate McDonald 
Chris Peace 
 

 Mike Chaplin 
Tony Damms 
Jayne Dunn 
 

6 City Ward 15 Graves Park Ward 24 Stannington Ward 
 Douglas Johnson 

Robert Murphy 
Martin Phipps 

 Ian Auckland 
Sue Auckland 
Steve Ayris 
 

 David Baker 
Penny Baker 
Vickie Priestley 
 

7 Crookes & Crosspool Ward 16 Hillsborough Ward 25 Stocksbridge & Upper Don Ward 

 Adam Hanrahan 
Mohammed Mahroof 
Anne Murphy 

 Bob Johnson 
George Lindars-Hammond 
Josie Paszek 
 

 Jack Clarkson 
Keith Davis 
Francyne Johnson 
 

8 Darnall Ward 17 Manor Castle Ward 26 Walkley Ward 
 Mazher Iqbal 

Mary Lea 
Zahira Naz 
 

 Lisa Banes 
Terry Fox 
Pat Midgley 
 

 Olivia Blake 
Ben Curran 
Neale Gibson 
 

9 Dore & Totley Ward 18 Mosborough Ward 27 West Ecclesfield Ward 
 Joe Otten 

Colin Ross 
Martin Smith 
 

 David Barker 
Tony Downing 
Gail Smith 
 

 John Booker 
Adam Hurst 
Mike Levery 
 

    28 Woodhouse Ward 
     Mick Rooney 

Jackie Satur 
Paul Wood 
 

 



 

 

John Mothersole Chief Executive 

 
Contact: Paul Robinson, Democratic Services 
 Tel: 0114 2734029 
 paul.robinson@sheffield.gov.uk 
 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
The Council is composed of 84 Councillors with one-third elected three years in four. 
Councillors are democratically accountable to the residents of their Ward. The 
overriding duty of Councillors is to the whole community, but they have a special 
duty to their constituents, including those who did not vote for them 
 
All Councillors meet together as the Council. Here Councillors decide the Council’s 
overall policies and set the budget each year. The Council appoints the Leader and 
at its Annual Meeting will appoint Councillors to serve on its Committees.  It also 
appoints representatives to serve on joint bodies and external organisations.   
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk.  You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday.  You may not be allowed to see some reports 
because they contain confidential information.  These items are usually marked * on 
the agenda.  
 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Council 
meetings and recording is allowed under the direction of the Chair.  Please see the 
website or contact Democratic Services for further information regarding public 
questions and petitions and details of the Council’s protocol on audio/visual 
recording and photography at council meetings. 
 
Council meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the Council may 
have to discuss an item in private.  If this happens, you will be asked to leave.  Any 
private items are normally left until last.  If you would like to attend the meeting 
please report to the First Point Reception desk where you will be directed to the 
meeting room. 
 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 

mailto:paul.robinson@sheffield.gov.uk
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/


 

 

 

COUNCIL AGENDA 
4 JULY 2018 

 
Order of Business 

 
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

2.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be 
considered at the meeting. 
 

3.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS AND OTHER 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 

 To receive any questions or petitions from the public, or communications 
submitted by the Lord Mayor or the Chief Executive and to pass such 
resolutions thereon as the Council Procedure Rules permit and as may be 
deemed expedient. 
 

4.   
 

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
 

 4.1 Questions relating to urgent business – Council Procedure Rule 
16.6(ii). 

 
4.2 Supplementary questions on written questions submitted at this 

meeting – Council Procedure Rule 16.4. 
 
4.3 Questions on the discharge of the functions of the South Yorkshire 

Joint Authorities for Fire and Rescue and Pensions – Section 41 of 
the Local Government Act 1985 – Council Procedure Rule 16.6(i). 

 
 (NB. Minutes of recent meetings of the two South Yorkshire Joint 

Authorities have been made available to all Members of the Council 
via the following link - 

 http://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13165&path=0) 
 
 

5.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "DEMANDING A FAIRER FUNDING 
SETTLEMENT FOR SHEFFIELD SCHOOLS" - GIVEN BY 
COUNCILLOR JAYNE DUNN AND TO BE SECONDED BY 
COUNCILLOR MIKE DRABBLE 
 

 That this Council: 
 
(a) contends that due to eight years of prolonged and unnecessary 

austerity, funding for the education system is no longer sufficient 
and Sheffield schools are disproportionality bearing the brunt of 

http://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13165&path=0


 

 

this; 
 
(b) notes that whilst the Government are finally providing an increase in 

much needed funding, the combination of eight years of standstill 
budgets and decisions around national insurance, funding of pay 
increases, etc. mean that schools have seen their budgets cut by 
an incredible 30% or more in real terms over this period; 

 
(c) notes that the Government have implemented a national funding 

formula in an attempt to readdress the balance, but in actuality the 
funding changes will mean that Sheffield schools will be worse off 
by £12.1m this year and £5.7m next year – a cut equivalent to £170 
per pupil in 2018/19 and £80 per pupil in 2019/20; 

 
(d) contends that despite the Government’s rhetoric of “fairness”, 

regional imbalances remain in the current system, for instance, an 
average sized secondary school in Sheffield would receive 
£822,000 more each year if it was situated in Manchester; 

 
(e) believes there is insufficient funding nationally in the school system 

and, despite the best efforts of teachers and parents, such 
inadequate funding will inevitably see the continued depletion of 
resources from our schools, and shows that not enough is being 
done to address the historical imbalance in the funding allocation 
for Sheffield schools; 

 
(f) believes that school funding does not need to be like this and notes 

that a Labour government would give our schools the resources 
they need; by reversing funding cuts and increasing the schools 
budget in real terms, to build a National Education Service that 
allows every child to fulfil their potential; 

 
(g) contends further that it is possible to stop the cuts and ensure all 

schools have the funding they need, and that to do so it would cost 
an estimated £5.66 billion across the UK by 2022 and the Labour 
Party’s fully costed 2017 General Election manifesto demonstrated 
how this could be paid for; 

 
(h) notes that the Administration is working closely with 

representatives, parents, teachers and unions from across 
Sheffield’s schools and together a united and strong opposition to 
the changes has emerged; 

 
(i) highlights that this Administration has written to the Secretary of 

State for Education demanding a fair settlement for Sheffield 
schools, and further notes that Labour councillors will continue to 
campaign and challenge the Government for a fair funding 
settlement for the city’s schools; 

 
(j) notes the wide-ranging campaign demanding better for Sheffield 



 

 

schools, including the recently launched public petition, co-authored 
by Learn Sheffield and this Administration, to put pressure on the 
Government; and 

 
(k) believes that schools are proud of Sheffield’s education community 

and the collaborative way it is approaching this, when the 
Government is doing everything to encourage division and set 
schools against each other. 

 
 

6.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "THE NHS AT 70 YEARS" - GIVEN 
BY COUNCILLOR CHRIS PEACE AND TO BE SECONDED BY 
COUNCILLOR ANNE MURPHY 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) believes that the NHS is in crisis after eight years of government 

underfunding and privatisation from the Conservatives and Liberal 
Democrats, and notes that patients are waiting longer hours in 
overcrowded A&Es, waiting lists are rising and hospitals are facing 
huge financial problems; 

 
(b) notes that 70 years ago, the Labour Party created the National 

Health Service (NHS), despite opposition from the Conservatives; 
 
(c) contends that the NHS is one of the crowning achievements of the 

post-war Labour government, and that the ideal that healthcare 
should be free to all is as important today as it was 70 years ago; 

 
(d) praises the commitment and compassion of staff working in the 

NHS and in social care throughout the last seventy years and to 
those currently employed who are having to work under ever 
increasing pressures; 

 
(e) believes that the NHS has helped transform British society for the 

better and its positive impact on the health of the UK population 
over the last seventy years is immeasurable; 

 
(f) believes that for all the public goodwill towards the NHS, recent 

governments have failed to support this precious institution 
sufficiently and despite the Rt. Hon Theresa May MP’s rhetoric of 
providing a “70th birthday present for the NHS”, the recent 
announcement of additional funding for the NHS confirmed that this 
Government has failed to give the NHS the funding it needs; 

 
(g) notes that patients are facing record waiting times for treatment, 

A&Es have had their worst performance figures on record this year, 
social care has been pushed into a state of emergency, the NHS 
currently has nearly 100,000 staff vacancies and NHS Trusts are 
almost £1billion in deficit; 



 

 

 
(h) contends that the Government’s pledge to increase spending by 

3.4% has been widely criticised for not going far enough to rectify 
eight years of austerity; 

 
(i) notes that the Government’s announcement excludes public health 

budgets, training and capital – meaning it’s an increase of around 
3% for health services, when we have a childhood obesity crisis, 
cuts to sexual health and addiction services, workforce shortages 
and a backlog of £5 billion repairs; 

 
(j) further notes that the Labour Party’s 2017 General Election 

manifesto pledged to invest an extra 5%, with nearly £9 billion extra 
going into the NHS and social care for this year alone; 

 
(k) notes that Labour’s spending commitment was fully costed, and 

would have seen the big corporations and the very wealthy being 
required to pay their fair share of tax to fund it; 

 
(l) notes that the 3.4% funding for NHS services (excluding the 

aforementioned funding for preventive, training and capital budgets) 
is still below the 3.7%  average increase the NHS has seen over the 
last 70 years; 

 
(m) further notes that the Labour government of 1997 - 2010 funded the 

NHS an extra 6% each year – which transformed and revitalised 
health services in the UK following years of neglect from 
Conservative governments of Margaret Thatcher and John Major -  
with hospital and GP waiting times significantly reduced and public 
satisfaction with health services reaching record levels;   

 
(n) notes that Labour’s 6% yearly increase over 13 years in 

government is in stark contrast to the miserly 1% yearly rise seen 
under the Conservative-Liberal Democrat coalition from 2010 to 
2015; and 

 
(o) believes that Labour is the only Party who can be trusted to stand 

up for the NHS and support is given to Labour’s consultation on 
how to re-establish a universally public NHS; with the ambition of 
bringing more health provision back in-house, and to dismantle the 
structures created under the Conservative-Liberal Democrat 
coalition’s Health and Social Care Act (2012) which led to billions of 
pounds wasted, greater privatisation and fragmentation, and 
instead, a Labour government would seek to, in the words of 
Jonathan Ashworth MP, Shadow Secretary of State for Health 
“move to an NHS based on partnership and planning where 
privatisation is banished”. 

 
 
 



 

 

7.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "OPPORTUNITY TO DEVELOP A 
MORE COLLABORATIVE APPROACH TO DEALING WITH 
SHEFFIELD'S STREET TREES" - GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR ADAM 
HANRAHAN AND TO BE SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR SIMON 
CLEMENT-JONES 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) notes (i) the use of civil injunctions by the Council against those 

campaigning against the felling of Sheffield's street trees; 
 

(ii) the very clear acknowledgement of the Leader of the Council 
that she “positively agreed” to the use of such injunctions and was 
supportive of the recent High Court proceedings; and 

 
(iii) that elected politicians have the right to set policy that decide if 
the Council does or does not use civil injunctions as a way of 
dealing with the street tree felling situation; 

 
(b) therefore, is both surprised and dismayed that the Administration is 

seeking to extend the time period of the injunctions for another 
three years and also extend the remit of the injunctions, 

 
(c) believes that this is all contrary to the spirit of compromise and 

working with campaigners to find solutions to the tree felling issue 
which the new Cabinet Member for Environment and Streetscene 
has publically stated; and 

 
(d) calls upon the Administration to use the current pause in tree felling 

to live up to the Cabinet Member’s promises of compromise and 
change to the way street trees are dealt with in our city. 

 
 

8.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "BREXIT BRITAIN" - GIVEN BY 
COUNCILLOR JOHN BOOKER AND TO BE SECONDED BY 
COUNCILLOR KEITH DAVIS 
 

 That this Council:- 
 
(a) notes that more than 17 million voters voted 'Leave', giving the 

Government the largest democratic mandate in the history of British 
politics and believes (i) there should be no question of turning back, 
(ii) Article 50 is a trap designed to obstruct countries from leaving 
the EU and (iii) there was no legal or moral obligation to use Article 
50, the UK has the legal right to withdraw from the EU unilaterally; 

 
(b)  expresses the view that Parliament must resume its supremacy of 

law-making without restriction, and that Britain must be completely 
free from the jurisdiction of the European Court of Justice, and must 
be free to relinquish its membership of the European Court of 



 

 

Human Rights, if we wish to do so; 
 
(c)  believes that Britain must have full control of immigration and 

asylum policies, and border control, and must not be bound by any 
freedom of movement obligation; 

 
(d)  also believes that the UK must take its seat in its own right on the 

World Trade Organisation (WTO) and resume its sovereign right to 
sign trade agreements with other entities or supra-national bodies; 
must have full rights to set its own tariff and non-tariff barriers 
consistent with WTO rules; and must leave both the EU single 
market and the customs union; 

 
(e)  further believes that the UK's full maritime sovereignty must be 

restored and we must have control of our maritime exclusive 
economic zone, which stretches 200 miles off the coast, or to the 
half-way point between the UK and neighbouring countries, and 
that there must be no constraints on our fishing fleet, other than 
those decided upon by the UK Parliament; 

 
(f)  expresses the view that the UK must not pay any 'divorce' 

payments to the EU, nor contribute to the EU budget, and must be 
paid back its share of financial assets from entities such as the 
European Investment Bank, in which £9 billion of UK money is 
vested; and 

 
(g)  is concerned at the possibility of a withdrawal agreement being 

signed which means the UK leaves the EU in name but not in 
substance, and believes that if the Rt. Hon. Theresa May MP signs 
such an agreement she will have betrayed Britain to the EU, just as 
every Prime Minister has done since 1972. 

 
 

9.   
 

ANNUAL SCRUTINY REPORT 2017-18 
 

 To receive the annual report providing an overview of scrutiny activity 
undertaken by each of the Scrutiny and Policy Development Committees 
during the 2017/18 Municipal Year, and proposed activity for 2018/19. 
 
Councillor Denise Fox, Lead Member for Scrutiny, will introduce the report, 
to be followed by an opportunity for Members of the Council to ask 
questions or make observations on the contents of the report. 
 
 

10.   
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING 
 

 To receive the record of the proceedings of the meeting of the Council 
held on 6th June 2018 and to approve the accuracy thereof. 
 
 



 

 

11.   
 

REPRESENTATION, DELEGATED AUTHORITY AND RELATED 
ISSUES 
 

 To consider any changes to the memberships and arrangements for 
meetings of Committees etc., delegated authority, and the appointment of 
representatives to serve on other bodies. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Chief Executive  
 
Dated this 26 day of June 2018 
 
 
The next ordinary meeting of the Council will be held on 5 September 2018 at 
the Town Hall 
 
 



 1 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of 
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 

 participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 
aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

 participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 

 leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 

 make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 
meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

 declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 
which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 

 Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 
a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



 2 

 

 Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 
have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 

 

 Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 
partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

 Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 

- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 

 Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 
securities of a body where -  

 

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b) either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

 a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

 it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 2



 3 

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Audit and 
Standards Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and 
Governance on 0114 2734018 or email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 3

mailto:gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1 of 2 

 
 

 
Report of:   Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Report to:   Full Council 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    4th July 2018 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   Annual Scrutiny Report 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report: Alice Nicholson, Deborah Fellowes & Emily Standbrook-

Shaw 
0114 273 5065 

________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
This item presents the Annual Scrutiny Report 2017/18.  The Annual Report provides 
an overview of scrutiny activity undertaken during the 2017/18 municipal year as well 
as Scrutiny priorities and highlights for 2018/19. It summarises the work of the 
Council’s 5 Scrutiny & Policy Development Committees: 

 Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 

 Children Young People and Family Support 

 Economic and Environmental Wellbeing 

 Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care 

 Safer and Stronger Communities 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendations: 
 
Full Council is asked to: 
 

1.  Note the work undertaken through the scrutiny committees during the 
2017/18 municipal year, and proposed for 2018/19. 
 

2. Note that members are still able to feed suggestions for the 2018/19 work 
programme in to the relevant Committees 
 

 
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
 

Full Council 

Page 5

Agenda Item 9



2 of 2 

 
__________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  None 
 
Category of Report: NONE  
 
 

Page 6



 

 

Sheffield Scrutiny Annual Report: 2017/2018 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

July 2018 

      

 

P
age 7



 

1 | P a g e  

 

Contents 

Contents ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1 

1.0 Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 2 

1.1 Chair‟s Introduction – Cllr Denise Fox, Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 2018/19 .............................................. 2 

1.2 Sheffield Scrutiny ....................................................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

2.0 Overview of activity 2017/18 .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

2.1 Overview & Scrutiny Management Committee 2017/18 ...................................................................................................................................... 7 

2.2 Children, Young People & Family Support 2017/18 ............................................................................................................................................ 9 

2.3 Healthier Communities & Adult Social Care 2017/18 ........................................................................................................................................ 12 

2.4 Safer & Stronger 2017/18 ................................................................................................................................................................................... 1515 

2.5 Economic & Environmental Wellbeing 2017/18 .................................................................................................................................................. 17 

3.0 Scrutiny Objectives 2018/19 ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

3.1 Approach to Scrutiny  .............................................................................................................................................................................................. 18 

3.2 Proposed Work Programme 2018/19 highlights ................................................................................................................................................. 19 

P
age 8



 

2 | P a g e  

 

4.0 Recommendations ......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 22 

 

 

1.0 Introduction  

1.1 Chair’s Introduction – Cllr Denise Fox, Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 2018/19 

As Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 2018/19 I present this report giving an overview of scrutiny activity 

during the 2017/18 municipal year, and looking forward at scrutiny priorities and highlights for 2018/19. 

1.2 Sheffield Scrutiny 

Scrutiny helps ensure that people making decisions are held to account, promoting clear and open decision making.  It has a policy 

development role, investigating issues that are important to the people of Sheffield and making recommendations to decision 

makers about how we could do things differently. Scrutiny also has some statutory responsibilities that extend beyond the Council – 

to consider significant changes to health services and to scrutinise the work of the Safer and Sustainable Communities Partnership 

Board. Our meetings are open to the public to attend and every agenda has an item that allows members of the public to ask a 

question. Our Committees‟ membership includes statutory diocese representatives and parent governors, a co-opted school 

governor representative and observers from Healthwatch Sheffield.  

P
age 9



 

3 | P a g e  

 

In Sheffield, the Scrutiny function is carried out through 5 Committees: 

 Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee (OSMC) 

 Children Young People and Family Support (CYP&FS) 

 Economic and Environmental Wellbeing (EEW) 

 Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care (HCASC) 

 Safer and Stronger Communities (SSC) 

 

2.0 Overview of activity 2017/18 

This section provides an indication of some of the key activities that have taken place in the past year. These are all important and 

making public services in Sheffield accountable, and particularly decisions that are taken about these services. In June 2018, the 

Council heard a motion regarding “more open and transparent decision making at Sheffield City Council” , triggering a debate about 

whether the current decision making structure is working. The role of Scrutiny is key to this and here are the reasons why I think we 

have made a difference this year. 

In 2017/18, we made a deliberate shift towards scrutinising the development of policy and strategy, getting more involved at an 

earlier stage of decision making. In some ways this makes identifying outcomes harder but nevertheless Scrutiny has had an 

impact in the following ways: 

P
age 10



 

4 | P a g e  

 

 Requested further work to provide more detailed information and intelligence about an issue or service 

 Reviewed the role of consultation and user involvement in the development of services 

 Made specific recommendations to decision makers to improve services, policies and strategies 

 Raised awareness and understanding of specific issues 

 Influenced developing policies and strategies 

Scrutiny‟s effectiveness is, in part, due to the cross party and collaborative nature of its work, freeing elected members to advocate 

for the communities they represent. Partnership working and public involvement are key elements of this collaboration.  I am 

pleased to report that during 2017/18, different ways of including communities in Scrutiny‟s activities were explored, for example, 

holding a meeting of the Safer Stronger Communities Committee at the Cathedral Archer project. The Children, Young People and 

Family Support Committee also engaged directly with Home Educators and front line Social Workers as part of its work 

programme. All of the committees worked closely with a wide range of partners from the NHS, Police, Fire Service, Tenants and 

Residents and a range of Voluntary Sector organisations, to achieve the work programme we set out at the beginning of the year. 

This is not a full list but I would like to thank all of those who contributed to the work programme and to achieving these outcomes.  

 

 

 

 

P
age 11



 

5 | P a g e  

 

Between them the 5 scrutiny committees in 2017/18 held 34 formal meetings, and covered over 80 subject areas.  

Committee OSMC CYP&FS EEW HCASC SSC Total 

Number of 
meetings 

  7   6   8   7   6 34 

Number of 
subjects 

10 24 14 20 16 84 

Number of Call 
-ins 

  1   0   2   0   0   3 

 

Depending on the nature of the topics, the extent to which detailed scrutiny is required, and the time and resources at their 
disposal, scrutiny committees use a range of approaches, including: 

 looking at issues in detail at meetings through single item agendas, in some cases using the style of a parliamentary 
select committee  

 requesting briefing papers for information/awareness which in some cases may highlight a need for more detailed 
scrutiny 

 running in-depth task group reviews and sub-groups taking evidence from different sources and forming propositions to 
take back to the formal scrutiny committees 

 holding „call-ins‟ of decisions where some councillors have concerns to such an extent that they believe the decision 
should be reviewed, and 

 considering petitions that have been brought direct to Scrutiny or to Full Council and then referred to scrutiny.  

 

P
age 12



 

6 | P a g e  

 

Two in depth, “task group” reviews were undertaken during 2017/18: 

 

Committee: Subject of Review: Reported to Cabinet: Further details: 

Safer Stronger Communities Street Culture 18/4/18 See page 16 

Children, Young People and 

Family Support 

Children‟s Social Care 18/7/18 (TBC) See page 11 

 

There have been 3 „call-ins‟ this year, see table on page 5, where Committees have reviewed decisions that have been made. After 
considering the issues, in each case the Committees voted to let the decisions stand. 

 

In December 2017, the national Select Committee for Communities and Local Government published a report on the “Effectiveness 
of Local Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee”. Whilst this annual report reflects the positive achievements of Scrutiny in 
Sheffield, we have been looking at the findings of this report and expect to be reporting back during 2018/19 on our response. 

 

 

 

P
age 13



 

7 | P a g e  

 

2.1 Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee  2017/18 

Chair: Cllr Chris Peace   

Remit of the Committee: Lead the scrutiny of high level cross-cutting and city-wide issues – appointing joint committees where 
appropriate; Scrutinise the use of Council resources – Resources Portfolio, budget monitoring, annual budget setting process; 
Performance monitoring – referring areas of concern to the relevant Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee where 
appropriate. 

Highlights from the work of the Committee in 2017/18 include: 

 
Annual Budget Setting Process – For 2017/18 the Committee wanted to take an earlier look at the budget setting process than it 
has in the past. An extra meeting was added to the schedule in January for the Committee to consider the process that was being 
undertaken to put the budget proposals together, including the public consultation. The Committee then met again in February to 
consider the draft budget proposals. The Committee reported to Cabinet that it believed the precarious financial position that 
Councils find themselves in is due to the approach of central government;  that the national crisis in social care is driving many of 
the difficult decisions that councils are having to make locally and expressed concerns about the longer term sustainability of local 
government without changes in how central government chooses to fund councils. The Committee also acknowledged the valuable 
contribution of the Council‟s front line staff and volunteers and community groups in the city. The Committee has agreed to include  
greater oversight of the budget in its work programme for 2018/19, including in-year monitoring and the process for putting together 
next year‟s budget proposals. Cabinet welcomed this approach. 
 
Sheffield City Region Devolution – The Committee was keen to hear about the current state of Sheffield City Region Devolution 
and so held a single item agenda meeting in February to hear from the Leader and Chief Executive of Sheffield City Council, the 
Managing Director of the City Region, and a Board Member from the Local Enterprise Partnership. The Committee was keen to 
understand the impact of the Barnsley and Doncaster position on the devolution deal, and how plans to inform the public about the 
forthcoming City Region Mayoral election are shaping up. They also wanted to understand the role of the Mayor, the support and 
facilities available for the Mayor‟s office, and the process and possible timelines for agreeing the Mayor‟s powers. 
 

P
age 14



 

8 | P a g e  

 

Work based Wellbeing and Development  – The Committee met in November to consider work based development and 
wellbeing, to contribute to the development of the workforce strategy. The Committee made several suggestions for inclusion in the 
strategy including; adequate mental health training for all staff, ensuring new initiatives work for all staff – including those not in 
„office based, office hours „ roles, and encouraging and enabling staff to complete the workforce survey. The Committee was keen 
to see that Trade Unions were involved and engaged in developing and implementing the strategy, and that the organisation 
provides an environment that encourages conversations around development and equips managers with the skills and capacity to 
have those conversations. The Committee felt that there was a pressing need to ensure that there are a range of options for 
whistleblowing, and for staff to report harassment, bullying and victimisation so that individuals can choose the reporting method 
that is most comfortable for them; and that there should be a way of escalating issues that is independent of the Council.  

Call-in of the Executive Director of Resources' Decision on the Treasury Management Mid-Year Review, including an 

Amendment to the Council's Minimum Revenue Provision Policy -  In January, Councillors called- in this decision. Their 

reason for calling it in was to „further scrutinise the decision made, that will have serious financial consequences for future budgets‟. 

The Committee heard from the Executive Director of Resources and the Cabinet Member for Finance.  The Committee was 

assured that the amendment to the Minimum Revenue Provision was prudent, and decided to take no action in relation to the call-

in, but did recommend that the Council‟s Audit and Standards Committee discuss the changes with the Council‟s external auditors 

as part of its work programme. 

 

 

 

  

P
age 15



 

9 | P a g e  

 

 

 

2.2 Children, Young People & Family Support Scrutiny Committee 2017/18 

Chair: Cllr Mick Rooney   Deputy Chair: Cllr Cliff Woodcraft 
Remit of the committee:  Early Years, Children's Social Care, Child Safeguarding, Education, Family Support, and Youth 
Services.  
 
Highlights from the work of the Committee in 2017-18 included: 
 
Adoptions (July and December) 
In July 2017, the Committee discussed the Annual Report for Looked After Children and Care Leavers, presented to them by the 
Cabinet Member for Children, Young People and Families, Councillor Jackie Drayton. As part of this the Committee considered 
issues around the process of adoption, tracking children with plans for adoption, recruitment of adopters and ways to improve 
timeliness. A further, more detailed report was requested on timeliness and tracking of adoptions.  
 
The Committee received this at their meeting in December 2017 and considered the six stages of adoption. The discussion also 
included a question from a member of the public regarding post adoption monitoring, which currently doesn‟t take place. The 
recommended outcomes were therefore: 
 

 To focus on successful placement of the child as opposed to meeting performance targets 

 To develop a method of monitoring post adoption success rates 

 To consult with elected members on this process 
 
School Exclusions (Sept) 
As part of its September 2017 meeting, the Committee received a detailed report on school exclusions in Sheffield, providing 
background and context and a detailed analysis of the figures. Members considered the difference between fixed term and 
permanent exclusions and also the variations across schools due to them all having their own policies.   

P
age 16



 

10 | P a g e  

 

 
Issues of high level of exclusions in primary schools and trends within BME communities were also considered and tested. 
Members were also made aware of limited funding for alternative provision for excluded pupils and a forthcoming review of this 
provision. 
 
As a result of this session members focused recommended outcomes on: 
 

 Requesting further involvement in the commissioning strategy for alternative provision, via a report to the Committee in 
November 2017. 

 Requesting a further report on Special Educational Needs and the development of the commissioning strategy for this. An initial 
report was received in January 2018. 

 Requesting regular briefing notes for all members on exclusions by electoral ward and ethnicity. 
  
School Attainment in 2017 (November) 
In November 2017 the Committee received a report outlining the provisional attainment results for city.  Officers presented an 
overall picture of improvement in performance generally and in comparison to other Local Authorities. They also received 
information on the outcomes and impact of the Learn Sheffield model.  Members were presented with some of the key challenges 
being faced across the city, particularly the performance issues with regard to Year One Phonics. 
 
Members also noted the good performance in Key Stage 5 and A Level results but requested further information regarding other 
post 16 outcomes, for example the number of young people engaged in apprenticeships.  
 
A final report was presented to the Committee, entitled  “Final Results: attainment and progress”  in March 2018.   
 
Elective Home Education (November and March) 
A presentation of the Elective Home Education Service was given to the Committee during its meeting in November 2017. Elective 
Home Educators were also present for the discussion as members of the public and were keen to explore further consultation and 
involvement with the service. Members discussion particularly focused on progress and tracking of home education children, the 
support provided to home educators and integration back into formal education for those children who required it. A further report 
was requested for March 2018, looking at some case studies of different kinds of home education. 

P
age 17



 

11 | P a g e  

 

 
Children’s Social Care Task Group  
The Scrutiny Committee set up a task group during 2017/18 to focus on a key policy area of Children‟s Social Care.  After spending 
the first two meetings gathering information about the context and challenges within Children‟s Social Care, the Task Group agreed 
to target two key areas of the Improvement Plan, with a view to influencing the outcome of new policy formulation and decisions. 
These two key areas were: 
 

1. Budget – sufficiency plan and local offer 

2. Quality – Workforce development, recruitment and retention. 

 

During January and February the group gathered evidence from people within Children‟s Social Care about initiatives to increase 
the local offer; particularly the number of in house Foster Carers; the potential impact of these initiatives on the budget, recruitment 
and retention plans to increase the numbers of experienced social workers within Sheffield, preventative measures for children not 
yet brought into care and specialist provision for the increasing number of older children and more complex cases.  
 
The recommendations from the review were reported to the main Committee at its March meeting and the report will be considered 
by the Council‟s Cabinet in July 2018. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 18



 

12 | P a g e  

 

 

2.3 Healthier Communities & Adult Social Care 2017/18 

Chair: Cllr Pat Midgley  Deputy Chair: Cllr Sue Alston 

Remit of the Committee: Local NHS Services and Health Service Commissioning, Local Health Services, including the power of 

referral to the Secretary of State for Health, Public Health, Health Inequalities, Adult Social Care and support, Adult Safeguarding 

Highlights from the work of the Committee in 2017/18 include: 

Oral and Dental Health in Sheffield – the Committee heard from a range of people and organisations including Sheffield‟s 

Director of Public Health, Public Health England, University of Sheffield‟s Dental Public Health Faculty, the Oral Health Promotion 

Team, dental practitioners, as well as NHS England, the commissioner of NHS dental services. The Committee made 

recommendations to NHS England and the Director for Public health on areas including access to dental services, low recorded 

rates of fluoride varnish applications and maximising the impact of oral health promotion through existing mechanisms. Cabinet 

also accepted a recommendation from the Committee that the issue of water fluoridation should be re-examined.  

Food and Wellbeing Strategy – the Committee considered the draft Food and Wellbeing Strategy and made recommendations to 

the Cabinet Member on areas such as the importance of close links between the Food and Wellbeing Strategy and the Tackling 

Poverty Strategy, the impact of cuts to weight management on individuals, the importance of having measurable objectives in the 

strategy and food standards and regulation post Brexit. The draft strategy was amended to reflect the feedback from the 

Committee, however the response to the Committee‟s comments that the draft strategy‟s focus was primarily on tackling obesity 

and could benefit from looking at wider food issues, stated that the focus on health as the primary outcome was justified due to the 

scale of the poor diet and obesity issue in Sheffield, and that broadening the strategy would make it harder to have a meaningful 

impact.  

P
age 19



 

13 | P a g e  

 

Urgent Care – NHS Sheffield CCG came to the Committee in September 2017 to present their intentions to consult on options for 

improving Urgent Care in the City. These options all included closure of the Minor Injuries Unit at the Hallamshire and the Broad 

Lane Walk-In Centre, and replacing them with Urgent Treatment Centres at the Northern General Hospital and Sheffield‟s 

Children‟s Hospital, alongside increased access to GP appointments within 24 hours, provided by groups of GP Practices working 

together. Urgent eye care would be provided at locations across the city and emergency eye care would be provided at the 

Hallamshire Hospital. The Committee expressed concerns including: the ability of patients to travel to other GP practices in their 

neighbourhood – including issues around public transport and cost, concern over absence of detail over how the model will work in 

each neighbourhood,  issues of accessibility and parking at the Northern General, the importance of any telephone triage system 

working well for everyone, including those who may not speak English and the importance of engaging widely through the 

consultation. This has been a high profile issue in the City and the Committee will keep a keen eye on the CCG‟s proposals as they 

emerge following the analysis of the consultation responses. 

Call-In of the Sheffield Accountable Care Partnership – The Committee met on the 5th December 2017 to consider a call-in of 

the Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care decision on the Sheffield Accountable Care Partnership. Councillors had called the 

decision in to further consider the formal scrutiny arrangements for the partnership. The Committee heard from the Cabinet 

Member for Health and Social Care and the Director of Public Health, who made it clear that the Sheffield Accountable Care 

Partnership was about collaboration between organisations, and that Sheffield City Council had no plans to develop an 

Accountable Care Organisation.  The Committee asked the Cabinet Member to request that meetings of the partnership take place 

in public, with minutes and papers published. She has confirmed that plans are underway to do this, as well as reporting to Scrutiny 

on a 6 monthly basis. 

Transfers of Care – In recent years Sheffield has performed poorly in delayed transfers of care – when someone is unable to 

leave hospital at the point their treatment is complete either because discharge planning has not been done in a timely way, or 

because the required support arrangements have not been put in place in quickly enough. In September, the Committee heard 

from representatives of Sheffield Teaching Hospitals, NHS Sheffield CCG and Sheffield City Council who explained that better 

relationships and ways of working between the 3 organisations, and a shared understanding of the performance data was resulting 

in significant improvements – but that the true test would be how the system coped over winter. Officers came to present an update 

P
age 20



 

14 | P a g e  

 

in March, and reported that performance had slipped back to last year‟s levels over the winter, but that there is cause for optimism. 

Winter 2017/18 was more difficult than the previous year, discharge planning on hospital wards is improving and adult social care 

capacity is greater this year than last. The Committee heard about further plans to improve performance this year, and will keep a 

watching brief. 

 

Scrutiny of Health activity outside of work programme 

South Yorkshire, Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and Wakefield Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Cllr Pat 

Midgley represents Sheffield City Council on this Committee.  It meets in relation to the Commissioners Working Together 

Collaborative and Health Service Change in South and Mid Yorkshire, Bassetlaw and North Derbyshire. It has been considering 

two NHS service reconfigurations - Hyper Acute Stroke Services; and Children‟s Surgery and Anaesthesia, as well as a review of 

Hospital Services. Sheffield Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee has 

received updates on activity. The Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee has met twice this year and will continue to meet 

in 2018/19 to monitor the implementation of the two reconfigurations, the hospital services review as well as any future NHS 

workstreams or potential reconfigurations over the geographical footprint. 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 21



 

15 | P a g e  

 

 

2.4 Safer & Stronger 2017/18 

Chair: Cllr Chris Peace  Deputy Chair: Cllr Penny Baker  

Remit of the Committee: Housing, Community Safety and Crime, Community Cohesion, Social Inclusion and Locality 
Management 

Highlights from the work of the Committee in 2017/18 include: 

Fire Safety on Council High Rise Residential Blocks – Following the tragedy of Grenfell Tower, London , June 2017, the 

Committee sought information from Sheffield City Council Housing Services on the position in regard fire safety for our tower 

blocks, including actions in regard cladding immediately and following results of cladding tests; actions and review of advice in 

respect of prevention and what to do in event of a fire; and most importantly communications with residents. In July 2017 the 

committee invited TARAs to attend a meeting and share their views on the Council response. The TARAs welcomed the response 

and reassurance of the Council following Grenfell, what was important to them was to see that cladding when removed was 

replaced soon and that the Council continue to communicate with tenants. The Committee have received two further updates in 

September 2017 and January 2018 and continue a watching brief to ensure tenants in Sheffield feel safe.   

Neighbourhood Policing in Sheffield – South Yorkshire Police shared their neighbourhood policing plans for Sheffield, the 

proposed structure that is being implemented over 2017/18, the Committee noted especially the positive, improving relationship 

with current Sheffield City Council safer neighbourhoods arrangements, the move to increased co-location of police and safer 

neighbourhoods teams; and members of the Committee took up the offer of a visit to the joint working, co-located Safer 

Neighbourhoods Service at Moorfoot.  

P
age 22



 

16 | P a g e  

 

Challenge for Change – the committee as in previous years receive the reports of the Challenge for Change Tenant Scrutiny 

Group. This year they reported on the quality of rehousing Services. 

Hate Crime – the Committee continue to monitor actions in response to the Committee‟s recommendations following the reporting 

of the Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee‟s Hate Crime Task Group, who reported back 

February  2017, there have been update reports to the Committee on progress on actions July 2017 and  March 2018. 

Street Culture – the committee meeting on 9th November was held out of the Town Hall at the Cathedral Archer Project and 

representatives attended from a range of organisations, agencies, commissioned and community groups, these included  the 

Council - Cabinet Adviser and officers, Drug and Alcohol Co-ordination Team, City Centre Ambassadors, South Yorkshire Police, 

Cathedral Archer Project, Sheffield Street Outreach Team, Street Pastor, Soup Kitchen, and Sheffield City Centre Residents Action 

Group. They were invited to inform on what is street culture and the issues in Sheffield, the latter also included consideration of a 

petition to Council for a Night Café. The Committee on hearing this range of information decided to set up a task group to gather 

more in-depth information and operational evidence, the task group reported its recommendations back to the Committee March 

2018. The final report was agreed and forwarded on to Cabinet to consider its recommendations in April 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 23



 

17 | P a g e  

 

 

 

2.5 Economic & Environmental Wellbeing 2017/18 

Chair: Cllr Denise Fox  Deputy Chair: Cllr Ian Auckland 

Remit of the Committee: Economic and Business Sector Development, Regeneration and Physical Development, Enterprise and 

Skills, Sustainable Development and Climate Change, Culture, Leisure and Tourism, Transport 

Highlights from the work of the Committee in 2017/18 include: 

City Centre Developments – fulfilling their Economic, Regeneration, Culture, Leisure and Tourism remit the Committee 
considered progress updates on key city centre developments, including Heart of the City Phase 2, retaining World Snooker 
Championship, China Economic and Civic Programme.  
 
Small Business Support – the committee were pleased to hear all that is provided to support small business in the city, and 
encourage a conversation on a policy direction that includes changing how business view the Council and the practical measures 
that can be put in place for example, in regard business rate relief assistance.  
 
Green City Strategy, Transport Vision, Clean Air Strategy- the committee work programme included a look at the programme 
and action plan for Sheffield sustainability strategy, the response to Sheffield Green Commission. The Committee heard that this 
will be fulfilled by a Green City Strategy, a Clean Air Strategy and the developing Sheffield Transport Vision, the Committee had the 
opportunity to undertake policy development and provide comment on the proposed Green City Strategy, along with comment on 
the consultation version of Sheffield Transport Vision, the agreed Clean Air strategy and Parking Strategy. The Committee agreed 
to consider these further as they develop and are implemented in the coming year.  

P
age 24



 

18 | P a g e  

 

Call In of Cabinet Decisions -  there were two call-ins of Cabinet Decisions in 2017/18 municipal year by Economic and 

Environmental Wellbeing Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee, providing a check and balance to executive decisions by 

finding out for Changes to Environmental Maintenance Services that the environmental and financial impacts had been 

appropriately considered; and for Disposal of Property at Mount Pleasant Sharrow Lane Sheffield a check that the decision had 

been based on appropriate process.  

Western Road First World War Memorial – over the year Cabinet provided verbal and formal written response to the Committee‟s 
recommendations in relation to the Western Road First World War Memorial, the Committee‟s recommendations led to the 
commission of further investigations, and the outcome of these was reported back to the Committee. 

3.0 Scrutiny Objectives 2018-19 

3.1 Approach to Scrutiny 

This year we will continue to have a policy focus in our work, aiming to look at issues where we can have the most impact. We want 
to look at how we can better engage and involve the public in Scrutiny‟s work, and improve our online information. We want to 
support scrutiny members to develop their skills and knowledge through training, where appropriate, and take a more joined up 
approach to scrutiny across the 5 Committees. 

We will continue to work across the region and sub-region through our membership of Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees looking at health service reconfigurations across various footprints and through links with the Sheffield City Region and 
the Police and Crime Panel. 

  

P
age 25



 

19 | P a g e  

 

 

3.2 Proposed Work Programme 2018-19 highlights 

The following table shows provisional topics for the Work Programme 2017/18. It should be noted, however, that this work 
programme will be considered in more detail by each of the Committees as their schedule of meetings commence. New ideas can 
therefore still be considered. The scrutiny work programme is a living document and appropriate items can also be suggested by 
members of the Committees throughout the municipal year. 

 

Scrutiny Committees Work Programme 2017/18 highlights 

Overview & Scrutiny Management Committee (OSMC) 

Annual Performance Update 2017-18 
To take an overview of Council performance and consider the performance 

management framework. 

Ethical Procurement To consider the updated Ethical Procurement Policy. 

Revenue Budget and Capital Programme 

2018/19 

To consider the budget and capital programme 2018/19 proposals before they are 

agreed by Cabinet 

Children, Young People and Family Support  

P
age 26



 

20 | P a g e  

 

Special Educational Needs in Sheffield 

 

To receive an update on the progress of the development and implementation of the 

Inclusion Strategy, specifically with regard to the conversion to EHC Plans  

Consultation on the future commissioning 

and delivery of young people‟s services  

To receive a report on the proposals for youth services, during the consultation period 

and provide feedback / comment.   

Children‟s Social Care Improvement and 

Recovery Plan 

To receive a progress update of the Improvement and Recovery Plan. 

Healthier Communities and Adult Social Care 

Urgent Care Proposals 

 

Following on from discussions in 2017/18, the Committee will consider the process 

that has been undertaken since the public consultation, including the revised options 

for delivering urgent care in the city. 

Accountable Care Partnership 

 

To understand how the Accountable Care Partnership works, what its aims are, how 

it plans to achieve them and the role of the Accountable Care Partnership in the wider 

health and social care landscape, particularly in relation to the Health and Wellbeing 

Board. 

P
age 27



 

21 | P a g e  

 

Joint Strategic Hospital Services Review 

 

 

To consider the outcome of the review and the potential impact on Sheffield  

Safer & Stronger Communities 

Fire Safety in Tower Blocks and 
Council High Rise Residential 
Buildings  

Continuing watch on Sheffield response to Grenfell Inquiry (December 2018 
possible interim report) and Hackitt review (interim report May 2018) 

Gun and knife Crime in the city 
Receive an update on gun and knife crime and approaches being taken 

Private Rented Housing Sector 

 

Report on increase in % of private rented sector in Sheffield (PRS); Cost and 

Quality - Mitigations, standards e.g. Selective Licensing, private landlords 

Economic and Environmental Wellbeing 

P
age 28



 

22 | P a g e  

 

Heart of the City II  
Report on basket of growth, placemaking, environment plans and strategies 

Green City Strategy  
Report on basket of growth, placemaking, environment plans and strategies 

Bus Services Bill – part 2 - future of bus 

provision in Sheffield and/or City Region 

Report on role of the Combined Authority  

 

4.0 Recommendations 

 

4.1 Full Council is asked to note the work undertaken through the scrutiny committees during the 2017/18 municipal year and 

proposed for 2018/19 and, 

4.2 Note that members are still able to feed suggestions for the 2018/19 work programme in to the relevant Committees 

 

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Minutes of the Meeting of the Council of the City of Sheffield held in the Council Chamber, Town Hall, 
Pinstone Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH, on Wednesday 6 June 2018, at 2.00 pm, pursuant to notice duly 
given and Summonses duly served. 

 
PRESENT 

 
THE LORD MAYOR (Councillor Magid Magid) 

THE DEPUTY LORD MAYOR (Councillor Tony Downing) 
 

1 Beauchief & Greenhill Ward 10 East Ecclesfield Ward 19 Nether Edge & Sharrow Ward 
 Simon Clement-Jones 

Bob Pullin 
Richard Shaw 
 

 Andy Bainbridge 
Moya O'Rourke 
 

 Mohammad Maroof 
Jim Steinke 
Alison Teal 
 

2 Beighton Ward 11 Ecclesall Ward 20 Park & Arbourthorne 
 Chris Rosling-Josephs 

Ian Saunders 
Sophie Wilson 
 

 Roger Davison 
Shaffaq Mohammed 
Paul Scriven 
 

 Julie Dore 
Ben Miskell 
Jack Scott 
 

3 Birley Ward 12 Firth Park Ward 21 Richmond Ward 
 Denise Fox 

Bryan Lodge 
 

 Abdul Khayum 
Alan Law 
Abtisam Mohamed 
 

 Mike Drabble 
Dianne Hurst 
Peter Rippon 
 

4 Broomhill & Sharrow Vale Ward 13 Fulwood Ward 22 Shiregreen & Brightside Ward 
 Michelle Cook 

Magid Magid 
Kaltum Rivers 
 

 Sue Alston 
Cliff Woodcraft 
 

 Dawn Dale 
Peter Price 
Garry Weatherall 
 

5 Burngreave Ward 14 Gleadless Valley Ward 23 Southey Ward 
 Talib Hussain 

Mark Jones 
 

 Lewis Dagnall 
Cate McDonald 
Chris Peace 
 

 Mike Chaplin 
Tony Damms 
Jayne Dunn 
 

6 City Ward 15 Graves Park Ward 24 Stannington Ward 
 Douglas Johnson 

Robert Murphy 
Martin Phipps 
 

 Ian Auckland 
Steve Ayris 
 

 David Baker 
Penny Baker 
 

7 Crookes & Crosspool Ward 16 Hillsborough Ward 25 Stocksbridge & Upper Don Ward 

 Adam Hanrahan 
Mohammed Mahroof 
Anne Murphy 
 

 Bob Johnson 
George Lindars-Hammond 
Josie Paszek 
 

 Jack Clarkson 
Keith Davis 
Francyne Johnson 
 

8 Darnall Ward 17 Manor Castle Ward 26 Walkley Ward 
 Mazher Iqbal 

Mary Lea 
Zahira Naz 
 

 Lisa Banes 
Terry Fox 
Pat Midgley 
 

 Olivia Blake 
Ben Curran 
Neale Gibson 
 

9 Dore & Totley Ward 18 Mosborough Ward 27 West Ecclesfield Ward 
 Joe Otten 

Colin Ross 
Martin Smith 
 

 David Barker 
Tony Downing 
Gail Smith 
 

 John Booker 
Adam Hurst 
Mike Levery 
 

    28 Woodhouse Ward 
     Mick Rooney 

Jackie Satur 
Paul Wood 
 

 

Page 31

Agenda Item 10



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 2 of 31 
 

1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Sue Auckland, Jackie 
Drayton, Karen McGowan, Vickie Priestley, Andrew Sangar and Steve Wilson. 

  
 
2.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

2.1 During consideration of item 5 – Notice of Motion regarding Recent Transport 
Innovations and Investment in Sheffield (See Minute 5 below), Councillors 
Talib Hussain and Mohammad Maroof declared personal interests in relation to 
those parts of the item that related to low emission taxi vehicles, on the 
grounds that they were taxi drivers. 

  
 
3.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS AND OTHER COMMUNICATIONS 
 

3.1 Petitions 
  
3.1.1 Petition Objecting to the Closure of the Hydrotherapy Pool at Seven Hills 

School 
  
 The Council received an electronic petition containing 1,249 signatures, 

objecting to the closure of the hydrotherapy pool at Seven Hills School.  
  
 Representations on behalf of the petitioners were made by Lisa Siddall. She 

stated that her son was one of the children that attended swimming lessons at 
the pool and had done so for the past two years. The staff and standard of 
teaching at the swim school were outstanding. The proposal to close the 
hydrotherapy pool was of concern as it would affect children and parents and 
there was no comparative facility and teaching available for children with 
physical disabilities at Seven Hills School. Children received substantial 
benefits from swimming and being in the water.  

  
 The reasons given for the proposal to close the pool were cost and the upkeep 

associated with the pool. However, the Shoals swim school had offered to 
meet the running costs of the pool and to provide a day each week when they 
would give free swimming lessons to children at the school. Shoals swim 
school also offered work experience and former students worked at the pool 
as lifeguards. Parents were devastated at the prospect of the pool closing and 
were not satisfied with the explanation given for the closure of the pool. It was 
considered that the benefits of the pool outweighed those of the alternative 
gym facilities, which it was proposed was put in place of the pool.  

  
 Lisa Siddall referred to the dedication of the Shoals swim school team to 

enable a girl with cerebral palsy to swim and achieve 200 metres and who was 
learning to dive. Swimming was endorsed as one of the most beneficial forms 
of exercise. She said that she had started the petition so that the decision 
could be looked at in more depth and consideration given as to how the pool 
might be kept open. 

Page 32



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 3 of 31 
 

 The Council referred the petition to Councillor Jayne Dunn, the Cabinet 
Member for Education and Skills. Councillor Dunn stated that the existing pool 
was a cold water pool and a hydrotherapy pool needed to be heated to a 
higher temperature. A new hydrotherapy pool would be installed as part of the 
redevelopment of the space at the school and which would be operational for 
two and a half days each week. While the redevelopment was taking place, 
children would be given access to alternative provision off site, so that 
hydrotherapy for children could continue. The redeveloped gym facility would 
also provide other types of movement activity for children such as rebound 
therapy. 

  
 Councillor Dunn said that she would be examining SEND (Special Education 

Needs and Disabilities) provision in Sheffield and how there could be more 
joined up working in this regard and she would also work with Councillor Mary 
Lea (the Cabinet Member for Culture, Parks and Leisure) to enable really good 
provision across the City. 

  
3.2 Public Questions 
  
3.2.1 Public Question Concerning Somaliland  
  
 Kaltum Elmi informed Members of the Council about the effect of a cyclone 

which had hit Somaliland and would cause many people there to be affected 
by hunger and thirst and the country was already in a period of drought. She 
said that Sheffield had made a big difference to people in Somaliland by 
generously raising funds for the poorest people there.    

  
 She said that a community fast-breaking event would be held on 8 June to 

help raise money for people in Somaliland and she asked whether the Lord 
Mayor or Deputy Lord Mayor and city councillors would be able to attend. 

  
 Councillor Julie Dore, the Leader of the Council, responded and stated that the 

question had highlighted the tragic events that were taking place and which 
were affecting people in Somaliland. She congratulated people on their efforts 
in fundraising so far and in organising the forthcoming event on 8 June. She 
said that, whilst she could not provide an answer with regard to the availability 
of the Deputy Lord Mayor to attend the event, she was sure that he would 
consider the invitation and that other councillors would also do the same.  

  
3.2.2 Public Question Concerning Arrangements for Council Meetings 
  
 Andy Barclay asked why the Council had moved the start time of meetings of 

full Council from 5pm to 2pm, which would mean that some people wishing to 
attend the meeting might not be able to attend or had to book time off work to 
do so. 

  
 Councillor Olivia Blake, the Deputy Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member 

for Finance, responded that in 2017 the Council began a trial period of 
changes to meetings of full Council and as part of this, the start time of Council 
moved from 2pm to 5pm. A Working Group, comprising all of the political 

Page 33



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 4 of 31 
 

parties represented on the Council, considered the changes and it was 
decided and agreed by all parties, following the trial period, to return to a start 
time of 2pm. There were plans to look at webcasting meetings in the coming 
months and this would enable a greater number of people to view and engage 
with meetings. She said that it was recognised that 2pm was a difficult time for 
some people to attend meetings. However, the majority of Members had 
agreed to move the start time of Council meetings back to 2pm from the 
temporary time of 5pm.  

  
3.2.3 Public Question Concerning Gleadless Valley Regeneration 
  
 Carrie Hedderwick asked questions concerning the Gleadless Valley 

regeneration, namely, what were the emerging plans and did this include 
demolition and new build; and a question with regard to the consultation costs 
and who was doing the consultation. She referred to the recent screening in 
Gleadless Valley of a film entitled Dispossession – the great social housing 
swindle. 

  
 Councillor Jim Steinke, the Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods and 

Community Safety, responded that both he and Councillor Jack Scott were 
due to attend a screening of the film but he apologised that in the event they 
were unable to because of another meeting and he hoped to be able to see 
the film at another time. The Gleadless Valley regeneration was at the 
beginning of the process, in terms of setting out the consultation process, the 
commissioning of a consultant and looking at how to use community grant 
funding which was available. A panel had been set up involving local 
councillors, to do that. A consultant would be engaged in the next two weeks.  

  
 Councillor Steinke said that with regard to the specific questions asked, whilst 

he could not be specific at this stage, where accommodation was poor it may 
be that demolition would take place. He said that he also hoped there would 
be new build. However, it was early in the process and it was really important 
to respect the tenants and residents and not to make people anxious.   

  
3.2.4 Public Question Concerning Special Olympics  
  
 Adam Butcher asked what the Council was doing with regard to the legacy of 

the Special Olympics in 2017.   
  
 Councillor Mary Lea, the Cabinet Member for Culture, Parks and Leisure, 

stated that the Special Olympics was a great success and the athletes were 
great ambassadors for Sheffield and it had a positive economic and 
reputational effect. The Council worked closely with the voluntary sector and 
with parents to help young athletes with learning disabilities. Discussions were 
also taking place with SIV (Sheffield International Venues) with regard to the 
enhancement of facilities and services and to address barriers which existed 
for disabled people.  

  
 Councillor Lea said that the Council would work across the City where there 

was sports provision and look for every opportunity to improve access for 

Page 34



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 5 of 31 
 

people with learning disabilities. She said that she was aware that a group did 
use the Olive Grove site. Councillor Lea also stated that she would very much 
like to see the Special Olympics back in Sheffield again in the future. 

  
3.2.5 Public Question Concerning Accessible Accommodation and Safety 
  
 Martha Foulds referred to the recent heart breaking death of Sakineh 

Afrasiabi, a partially sighted woman who had lived on eighteenth floor of the 
Grenfell Tower, despite Kensington and Chelsea Council saying that she 
should not be located more than four floors above ground level. She asked 
what steps Sheffield City Council had taken to ensure that older and disabled 
people in Council-owned and Council managed properties were able to safely 
evacuate in an emergency.  

  
 Councillor Jim Steinke, the Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods and 

Community Safety, responded that the events and fire which had occurred 
relating to Grenfell Tower were very tragic and there was an ongoing 
investigation into how the events might have been avoided and the lessons to 
be learned.  

  
 He said that an extensive briefing note had been prepared on this issue and 

he would be pleased to let the questioner have a copy of it. At present, 
Sheffield had a stay-put policy in respect of flats and tower blocks and this 
would not change until the Council was informed to the contrary by the 
Government or the Fire and Rescue Service. The stay-put policy had been 
effective in previous incidents of fires in the City and which had been 
contained. 

  
 He said that extensive fire protection work had been done in respect of flats in 

Sheffield and he was satisfied that tower blocks were as safe as they could be 
at this point in time. There was a question of how any further additional 
protection work would be funded. It had already been agreed to implement 
sprinklers in all tower blocks in Sheffield.  

  
 The Hackitt report had recently been produced in relation to the Grenfell Tower 

and the Council was looking at the implications of that report and following 
which a further briefing note was to be produced. The issue was also likely to 
be considered by a Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee to look at the 
implications and policy. 

  
 As regards disabled people or those with special needs, a suitability 

assessment was undertaken and, if a tower block was safe, it was not for the 
local authority to prohibit people from living in a certain place if they were able 
to. He said that in terms of the future of tower blocks, many people liked living 
in them, and also on the higher floors, including disabled people and it was 
important that people felt that it was safe to do so. 

  
 Councillor Steinke undertook to send a copy of the report to the questioner 

and Members of the Council. 
  

Page 35



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 6 of 31 
 

3.2.6 Public Question Concerning Legal Proceedings 
  
 Dave Dillner asked at what point the Leader of the Council became involved in 

discussions concerning legal proceedings relating to Court injunctions for 
trespass in tree work safety zones. 

  
 Councillor Julie Dore, the Leader of the Council, said that this was the subject 

of an ongoing legal case and her response would be made in that context. She 
pointed out that politicians took policy decisions and Council officers took 
decisions relating to individual Court action. She said that she had been 
continuously briefed on the matter and issues relating to the protests 
concerning trees, which had been ongoing for some time. She had been 
briefed by officers since this first became an issue and the newly appointed 
Cabinet Member was also briefed upon taking office, as the previous Cabinet 
Member had been.  

  
 Councillor Dore said that on Tuesday, 5 June she had been contacted 

following a request for clarification from the Judge to ask whether she agreed 
to the case being brought forward and her reply was that she did. She said 
that she respected the process that was followed and which had led to the 
decision and she believed it was important that the process was respected. 
The Council was involved in many legal actions relating to a range of issues 
and it would be a dangerous precedent to set for elected members to make 
decisions about the bringing forward of cases against individuals. It was right 
that decisions were made independently and objectively by professional 
Council officers.  

  
3.2.7 Public Question Concerning Blue Badges 
  
 Graham Wroe made reference to an article in the Sheffield Star dated 6 June 

2018, which reported that a disabled woman was refused a blue badge 
renewal and would have to wait four months without a badge, until an appeal 
was heard. He said that, since new regulations had come into force, it seemed 
that many people previously considered eligible for a blue badge were not now 
considered disabled enough to get a blue badge. This particularly concerned 
people with conditions such as ME (Myalgic Encephalomyelitis) or Chronic 
Fatigue Syndrome which might have fluctuating symptoms. He asked the 
following questions: 

  
 Is there a quota of how many blue badges Sheffield City Council could now 

issue each year; would it not be possible to extend a blue badge to the date of 
the appeal, if it was being refused; and should not applicants with conditions 
with fluctuating symptoms be assessed on their capabilities on their worst day, 
rather than their best day? 

  
 Councillor Jack Scott, the Cabinet Member for Transport and Development, 

stated that he found that in the UK, at present, there was a hostile environment 
with regard to many disabled people. Many Councillors had constituents who 
were subject to a review of a Personal Independence Payment (PIP) and also 
in relation to benefits and workplace capability and other policy measures.  

Page 36



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 7 of 31 
 

  
 There was no quota for blue badges and the Council would not support that. 

The Council had recently responded to Government consultation on the 
implementation of blue badges and had made it clear that blue badges should 
be awarded on the basis of need. He agreed that it would be preferable (if 
indeed, it was in the Council‟s gift) to extend the use of a blue badge until an 
appeal had been heard and had been resolved. However, blue badges were 
subject to strict national guidelines, which governed the implementation of the 
blue badge scheme.   

  
 Councillor Scott said that he believed that people should be assessed for their 

worst condition and the extent to which they needed to use a blue badge for 
that condition.  In relation to people with long term conditions, the blue badge 
scheme at present relied upon a physical medical model of disability rather 
than a social model of disability, which put people at a further disadvantage 
when they had to effectively proof the extent of their disability, which he 
believed was wrong. He was planning to meet with disability groups in relation 
to this issue as, despite national government guidelines, there were potential 
options about how the scheme was implemented in Sheffield and he was 
determined that the Council did all that it could to make it as fair as possible for 
people with disabilities. 

  
3.2.8 Public Question Concerning Subject Matter of Notices of Motion 
  
 Nigel Slack referred to Notices of Motion included on the Council Summons 

and asked whether the Council would undertake to make the effort to ensure 
that at least one of the majority group's motions tackled issues of national and 
international concern, rather than being of a party political nature. 

  
 Councillor Julie Dore, the Leader of the Council, stated that the Council 

agenda for this meeting included a Notice of Motion concerning transport, 
which was a high profile issue nationally and certainly for the north of England; 
and secondly, a Motion concerning Fracking, which was also of both local and 
national importance and these were issues that she believed were of public 
interest. 

  
 Councillor Jack Scott, the Cabinet Member for Transport and Development, 

added that in relation to the Motion concerning transport, it was right that the 
Council put forward a range of celebrations and issues about things which 
were going well in the City. 

  
3.2.9 Public Question Concerning the General Cemetery 
  
 Nigel Slack made reference to the General Cemetery and to concerns relating 

to previous decisions made at the time the original lease was granted and over 
the ownership of the Anglican Chapel within the grounds. He said there were 
plans which indicated that the Council retained access rights from Cemetery 
Road, along the top of the grounds and as far as the Anglican Chapel. He said 
this indicated an area that could accommodate vehicle access and parking. 

  

Page 37



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 8 of 31 
 

 Mr Slack asked whether the Council would commit to excluding any further 
commercial exploitation of this sensitive listed location. 

  
 Councillor Jack Scott, the Cabinet Member for Transport and Development 

said that on the question of planning policy and whether the Council would 
remove its requirement for disabled parking places in particular, he wished to 
make it clear that he would not support a change to planning policy which 
excluded people with disabilities. The position regarding the Cemetery was 
one that was supported by a number of groups, including Sheffield Disabled 
People Against the Cuts, Disability Sheffield and wheelchair user groups. 
Seeking the views of such groups as those representing disabled people was 
important as regards the development of an inclusive planning policy.  

  
 He said that, in this case, in respect of both disabled parking spaces and the 

broader commerciality, the planning policy was right and the Planning and 
Highways Committee had formed a fair, inclusive and sustainable decision. He 
said that the City‟s natural and built heritage were assets for everyone and the 
Council would not support a change in policy which excluded disabled people 
from being able to benefit from them. 

  
3.2.10 Public Question Concerning the Old Town Hall 
  
 Nigel Slack said that it was nearly 11 months since the Council allocated 

monies to carry out vital and urgent repairs to the Old Town Hall roof and since 
that time, the building had been subject to another winter and rain that would 
have undoubtedly caused yet more damage to the roof and interior. 

  
 He said that, despite the fact that the Friend‟s group had undertaken 

significant structural analysis of the building, the Council had spent money on 
further surveys to find the same results as provided by the Friend‟s group and 
he said that he suspected it would be spending more money on a Quantity 
Surveyor and tender process before the work was carried out. 

  
 Mr Slack asked the following questions: 

 

1. How much has been spent on the Council's surveys? 
2. What is expected to be the costs of the Quantity Surveyor and tender 

process? 
3. How much money will be left in the allocated budget for the actual 

work? 
4. Will this desperately needed work start before the anniversary of the 

money being made available? 
  
 Councillor Mazher Iqbal, the Cabinet Member for Business and Investment, 

responded that he would be pleased to provide to Mr Slack the report relating 
Castlegate. This concerned the wider regeneration of the area and not only the 
Old Town Hall building. The Council did not own the Old Town Hall building. It 
was owned by a private developer. Resources that the Council was making 
available related to the use of powers to take the landlord to court to gain 
access to the building. He said that he was in contact with the Friends Group 
and City Councillors were members of the Castle Regeneration Board.  

Page 38



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 9 of 31 
 

  
 He said that the Old Town Hall was an historic building and it required people 

with the necessary technical expertise to look at it as there could potentially be 
materials present, including asbestos. Therefore, an element of the resource 
which the Council was making available was to carry out a survey. He said 
that he did not know what the costs were of remedial works and so was not 
able to give any commitment at this time.  

  
 Councillor Iqbal said that it was important that the use of public funds followed 

the proper process, one of which was a legal process and, if the landlord did 
not respond, works could be carried out and if necessary, a charge would be 
put on the building to recover costs at such a time as it was sold. However, the 
precise details of the damage to the building were not known. Structural 
Engineers were to examine the building this month and would provide a report 
as to the work that was required.  So far, £1,500 had been spent on the work. 

  
 Councillor Iqbal stated that he would like for Mr Slack to have the full facts, so 

he might ask questions in relation to this matter. The Council was doing 
everything possible. There was a Board, consisting of a number of 
stakeholders, including the Friends of the Old Town Hall. Further information 
would be made available following the survey and Mr Slack could be included 
on the mailing list for this issue to ensure he received the relevant up to date 
information. 

  
3.2.11 Public Question Concerning Midland Railway Station 
  
 Nigel Slack stated that in a response to an enquiry concerning the works being 

carried out at the Midland Station, the relevant Cabinet Member responded on 
social media that “I am not in a position to discuss this”. He commented that 
work to a listed building so prominent to visitors to the city was of public 
interest and asked what works were being carried out there and why there had 
been a curious response from the Cabinet Member. 

  
 Councillor Jack Scott, the Cabinet Member for Transport and Development, 

said that he had answered a question concerning this topic online and he had 
said that he was not in a position to comment as he wanted people to know 
that he was not ignoring the question that had been addressed to him.  

  
 He said there were several pieces of legislation, including the 1845 Railway 

Clauses Consolidation Act and 1898 Midland Railways Act, which governed 
the law in the area in and around the railway station. Network Rail had a 
statutory duty to ensure that railway infrastructure and stations were safe and 
which included taking necessary steps to protect them from attacks based on 
an assessment of the threat.  

  
 Councillor Scott said that there were permitted development rights under the 

legislation and statutory obligations and that Network Rail was not required to 
refer to the Council as Planning Authority to make changes to the station for 
that type of reason, although the Council‟s planning team had engaged with 
Network Rail in relation to design and construction. He said that further 

Page 39



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 10 of 31 
 

questions on this matter were probably best directed to Network Rail or to the 
Government. 

  
3.2.12 Public Question Concerning Social Media 
  
 Nigel Slack stated that on social media there had been incidents of Councillors 

utilising 'fake' identities to 'Troll' other users and he commented on 
disrespectful comments by councillors on social media. He asked how this 
potential action would fit with the Council's Code of Conduct and the Nolan 
principles of public life; and whether it was time that Councillors and officers 
were required to declare any and all public media profiles that they have. 

  
 Councillor Julie Dore, the Leader of the Council, said that she believed that it 

might be very difficult to enforce a position whereby people were required to 
declare public media profiles if these „fake‟ identities were anonymous. 
However, she did take the point that Mr Slack had raised seriously. She was 
not aware of particular occurrences, but if there were Members who had 
allegedly made disrespectful comments through fake identities and they were 
in effect „trolling‟ others, which was in a sense a form of bullying and 
intimidation, then this was not acceptable.  

  
 Councillor Dore advised that, if Mr Slack could show where this had occurred 

and had evidence, he could put this through the Council‟s procedure for 
complaints about elected members and consideration would be given as to 
whether there was a potential breach of the Code of Conduct. 

 
 
4.   
 

MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
 

4.1 Urgent Business 
  
4.1.1 With the permission of the Lord Mayor (Councillor Magid Magid), Councillor 

Shaffaq Mohammed asked the Leader of the Council (Councillor Julie Dore) 
the following questions relating to urgent business, under the provisions of 
Council Procedure Rule 16.6(ii):- 

  
 To ask the Leader of the Council when she was asked to support and give her 

approval for the legal proceedings to commit four tree campaigners to the High 
Court in Sheffield and to ask the Leader of the Council when she informed her 
cabinet colleagues, including Cllr Dagnall, that she had been involved and had 
given her approval for the legal proceedings to commit four tree campaigners 
to the High Court in Sheffield? 

  
4.1.2 In response, Councillor Dore indicated that she had provided an answer on this 

matter earlier at the meeting, when responding to the public question asked by 
Mr. Dillner. 

  
4.2 Questions 
  
4.2.1 A schedule of questions to Cabinet Members, submitted in accordance with 

Page 40



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 11 of 31 
 

Council Procedure Rule 16, and which contained written answers, was 
circulated.  Supplementary questions, under the provisions of Council 
Procedure Rule 16.4, were asked and were answered by the appropriate 
Cabinet Members until the expiry of the 30 minute time limit for Members‟ 
Questions (in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 16.7). 

  
4.3 South Yorkshire Joint Authorities 
  
4.3.1 Questions relating to the discharge of the functions of the South Yorkshire 

Joint Authorities for Fire and Rescue and Pensions (under the provisions of 
Council Procedure Rule 16.6i) were not able to be asked before the expiry of 
the 30 minute time limit for Members‟ Questions (in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 16.7). 

  
 
5.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "RECENT TRANSPORT INNOVATIONS 
AND INVESTMENT IN SHEFFIELD" - GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR JACK 
SCOTT AND TO BE SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR MICHELLE COOK 
 

5.1 It was moved by Councillor Jack Scott, and seconded by Councillor Michelle 
Cook, that this Council:- 

  
 (a) notes the recent innovations and changes in how people are able to 

travel throughout Sheffield and believes that, under this Administration, 
travelling in the city is becoming more integrated and greener; 

 
(b) notes the recent success of the Ofo bikes, which are proving so popular 

that the innovative bike sharing scheme is now the country‟s second 
largest outside of London;  

 
(c) notes that this Administration is investing £1.9 million to provide cleaner 

buses and bring them up to the E6 standard, which will in turn be one of 
the best standards set outside of London;  

 
(d) further notes that record investment in tackling air pollution in Sheffield is 

now underway with the beginnings of £1.3m investment from the “Early 
Measures Fund” to help transform the City‟s air; 

 
(e) notes that the funding secured from the Early Measures Fund is a direct 

result of this Administration‟s successful lobbying in order to meet the 
ambitious standards set out in its Air Quality Strategy; 

 
(f) notes that under this Administration, the Council will be making 

Sheffield‟s largest ever investment in specific Air Quality Measures; 
 
(g) recalls the miserly £5,000 of investment for electric taxis proposed by the 

Green Group in its budget amendments for 2017/18, and that this is in 
the sharpest possible contrast to the actions from this Administration who 
have secured around £500,000 to electrify and revolutionise Sheffield‟s 
taxi fleet for the year ahead; 

Page 41



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 12 of 31 
 

(h) notes under this Administration we have seen the opening of the first 
new park and ride of recent years through IKEA and celebrates its 
popularity, convenience and environmental impact; 

 
(i) believes that the Better Bus funding agreement will make journeys 

quicker and more reliable and prioritise public transport; 
 
(j) notes that this Administration‟s Clean Air strategy commits the Council to 

working alongside the city‟s bus companies to improve the bus fleet and 
reduce emissions through replacement low-emission buses or re-
powering vehicles with cleaner engine technology; 

 
(k) further notes that as part of the Clean Air Strategy the Administration is 

rolling out anti-idling zones outside schools, and other targeted locations, 
and is establishing 20mph speed limits across the city centre to make 
roads safer and to encourage more sustainable modes of travel such as 
cycling and walking;  

 
(l) notes the decisions last month by the Council‟s Cabinet to invest £2.5m 

in cycle infrastructure and invest in new schemes for pedestrians; 
 
(m) highlights that the new Parking Strategy has put environment issues at 

its core, encouraging active modes of transport and, in addition, that 
attention should be drawn to the highly successful first ever “+1” scheme 
which encouraged public transport use in to the city centre in the weeks 
running up to Christmas; 

  
(n) believes that the new transport vision and strategy is likely to further 

revolutionise travel in the city, and is encouraged that this strategy will be 
going to Cabinet in the near future; 

 
(o) notes that a future Labour government would bring the railways back into 

public ownership and believes that it is becoming increasingly clear that 
rail privatisation has been a terrible deal for passengers and UK 
taxpayers, as further demonstrated recently with rail services on the East 
Coast Mainline needing to be brought under government control 
following the abject failure of the current franchise; 

 
(p) welcomes that the East Coast Mainline rail service will once again be ran 

publically, and hopes that the line is not returned to another private 
provider to once again provide a failed service; 

 
(q) notes that this Administration has called for greater powers for local 

authorities to determine the type of bus services that should be delivered 
locally, including the possibility of running bus services “in-house”; and 

 
(r) expresses its warm congratulations to the first directly elected mayor for 

the Sheffield City Region, Dan Jarvis M.P., and welcomes the 
opportunities that this may provide for bus re-regulation and greater 
regional transport integration. 

Page 42



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 13 of 31 
 

  
5.1.1 (NOTE: With the agreement of the Council and at the request of the mover of 

the Motion (Councillor Jack Scott), the Motion as published on the agenda was 
altered by the substitution, in paragraph (g), of the words “electric taxis” for the 
words “electric taxi leasing”.) 

  
5.2 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Ian Auckland, seconded by Councillor 

Richard Shaw, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended 
by the deletion of all the words after the words “That this Council” and the 
addition of the following words:- 

  
 (a) welcomes the apparent conversion by the Administration to the Liberal 

Democrat “prochoice” transport policy, but regrets this is rather late in the 
day; 

 
(b) is concerned that the reality remains that the present Administration  is 

“anti-car”; 
 
(c) welcomes the success of this and previous administrations in obtaining, 

usually through competitive bids, central government time-limited funding 
for Sheffield and South Yorkshire, but notes that such funding does 
nothing to address the long term funding injustice between London and 
the South East, and the “North”; 

 
(d) notes the value that trees play in tackling air quality and is dismayed by 

the current Administration‟s policy, which this Council believes to be 
reckless, of felling healthy street trees despite recommendations by the 
Independent Tree Panel that these much valued trees can be saved via 
accepted engineering solutions; 

 
(e) remains concerned at the failure of the Labour Party in South Yorkshire 

and the Labour administration of this Council to unlock long-term funding 
of £30 million per annum over 30 years (£900 million in total), by means 
of the City Region Devolution deal and notes that, so far, £2.3 million of 
Sheffield City Region funding is unspent; 

 
(f) is concerned that the opportunities for holding the Administration to 

account and to hear from and influence officers with respect to transport 
policies and plans has been reduced by centralising their decision 
making after abolishing Community Assemblies, and notes that a Liberal 
Democrat administration would reverse this situation in order to 
demonstrate truth, trust and transparency in decision making that our city 
badly needs; 

 
(g) emphasises the value and importance of small local transport schemes 

with the object of removing short local journeys by car, particularly the 
school run, and accordingly is very concerned that a policy for the use of 
community infrastructure levy monies, amounting to £494,532 as of 31st 
December 2017, has still not been approved; 

 

Page 43



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 14 of 31 
 

(h) expresses surprise at the investment of £694,000 in the City Centre 
20mph zone as a priority, when so many other local roads in all wards in 
the City are more suitable for such schemes - average speed in the city 
centre is less than 20mph, and roads which are more prone to accidents 
are not included; 

 
(i) is concerned that plans on paper don‟t equal real action on the ground 

and calls for a complete review of transport and parking services in order 
to ensure that the services are “fit for purpose”; 

 
(j) agrees with targeted road capacity improvements which are necessary to 

ensure economic and productivity growth, but believes these will only 
succeed if private car users make a positive choice to use alternative 
modes of transport, otherwise congestion will continue to increase in the 
long run; 

 
(k) is very concerned, therefore, at the failure of the Sheffield Bus 

Partnership to increase bus passenger numbers and believes that any 
“reasons” advanced for this are no more than excuses, and no amount of 
“innovation and investment” will succeed without a regular, reliable, 
affordable, integrated, stable, environmentally-friendly and expanding 
bus network, and that, sadly, such a service appears to be increasingly 
absent from all areas of Sheffield; and 

 
(l) believes that the Labour Party are rather late converts to the cause of 

bus reregulation, in recent years having done nothing in office locally, 
and little nationally, to make reregulation a realistic possibility. 

  
5.3 It was then moved by Councillor Robert Murphy, seconded by Councillor 

Douglas Johnson, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be 
amended by:- 

  
 1. the addition of the following words at the end of paragraph (r):- 

 
 “and will hold the Mayor to account for his manifesto promises to „use 

regulatory powers, and eventually franchising, to improve bus services‟ 
and „work with all transport operators to introduce an integrated ticketing 
system across all public transport‟; and 

  
 2. the addition of new paragraphs (s) to (v) as follows:- 

 
(s) congratulates this Administration and the Labour Party on their new-

found support for the long standing local and national Green Party 
transport policies such as a 20 mph limit for the city centre; support for 
low emission taxis; investment in cycling and pedestrian infrastructure; 
public ownership of the rail network and re-regulation of bus services; 

 
(t) is disappointed by Council plans to invest in the widening of roads in 

Kelham Island and Heeley using the 'predict and provide' principle which 
was discredited in the 1998 White Paper: A New Deal for Transport as 

Page 44



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 15 of 31 
 

being likely to lead to worse traffic congestion and air quality in the long 
term; 

 
(u) hopes that unlike the Council's two previous Air Quality Action Plans, the 

vision and strategies in this Motion are followed through effectively and 
the people of Sheffield feel the benefits of less congestion, cleaner air 
and better accessibility; and 

 
(v) looks forward to more green transport policies being taken up by this 

Council, such as the opening and re-opening of railway stations and 
lines, the introduction of more segregated cycle routes and the return of 
the Freebee city-centre bus service. 

  
5.4 After contributions from five other Members, and following a right of reply from 

Councillor Jack Scott, the amendment moved by Councillor Ian Auckland was 
put to the vote and was negatived. 

  
5.5 The amendment moved by Councillor Robert Murphy was then put to the vote 

and was also negatived. 
  
5.5.1 (NOTE: Councillors Simon Clement-Jones, Bob Pullin, Richard Shaw, Adam 

Hanrahan, Mohammed Mahroof, Joe Otten, Colin Ross, Martin Smith, Roger 
Davison, Shaffaq Mohammed, Paul Scriven, Sue Alston, Cliff Woodcraft, Ian 
Auckland, Steve Ayris, Gail Smith, David Baker, Penny Baker and Mike Levery 
voted for part 1 and against part 2 of the amendment, and asked for this to be 
recorded.) 

  
5.6 The original Motion, as altered, was then put to the vote and carried as follows:- 
  

 RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
 
(a) notes the recent innovations and changes in how people are able to 

travel throughout Sheffield and believes that, under this Administration, 
travelling in the city is becoming more integrated and greener;  

 
(b) notes the recent success of the Ofo bikes, which are proving so popular 

that the innovative bike sharing scheme is now the country‟s second 
largest outside of London;  

 
(c) notes that this Administration is investing £1.9 million to provide cleaner 

buses and bring them up to the E6 standard, which will in turn be one of 
the best standards set outside of London;  

 
(d) further notes that record investment in tackling air pollution in Sheffield is 

now underway with the beginnings of £1.3m investment from the “Early 
Measures Fund” to help transform the City‟s air; 

 
(e) notes that the funding secured from the Early Measures Fund is a direct 

result of this Administration‟s successful lobbying in order to meet the 
ambitious standards set out in its Air Quality Strategy; 

Page 45



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 16 of 31 
 

 
(f) notes that under this Administration, the Council will be making 

Sheffield‟s largest ever investment in specific Air Quality Measures; 
 
(g) recalls the miserly £5,000 of investment for electric taxis proposed by the 

Green Group in its budget amendments for 2017/18, and that this is in 
the sharpest possible contrast to the actions from this Administration who 
have secured around £500,000 to electrify and revolutionise Sheffield‟s 
taxi fleet for the year ahead; 

 
(h) notes under this Administration we have seen the opening of the first 

new park and ride of recent years through IKEA and celebrates its 
popularity, convenience and environmental impact; 

 
(i) believes that the Better Bus funding agreement will make journeys 

quicker and more reliable and prioritise public transport; 
 
(j) notes that this Administration‟s Clean Air strategy commits the Council to 

working alongside the city‟s bus companies to improve the bus fleet and 
reduce emissions through replacement low-emission buses or re-
powering vehicles with cleaner engine technology; 

 
(k) further notes that as part of the Clean Air Strategy the Administration is 

rolling out anti-idling zones outside schools, and other targeted locations, 
and is establishing 20mph speed limits across the city centre to make 
roads safer and to encourage more sustainable modes of travel such as 
cycling and walking;  

 
(l) notes the decisions last month by the Council‟s Cabinet to invest £2.5m 

in cycle infrastructure and invest in new schemes for pedestrians; 
 
(m) highlights that the new Parking Strategy has put environment issues at 

its core, encouraging active modes of transport and, in addition, that 
attention should be drawn to the highly successful first ever “+1” scheme 
which encouraged public transport use in to the city centre in the weeks 
running up to Christmas; 

 
(n) believes that the new transport vision and strategy is likely to further 

revolutionise travel in the city, and is encouraged that this strategy will be 
going to Cabinet in the near future; 

 
(o) notes that a future Labour government would bring the railways back into 

public ownership and believes that it is becoming increasingly clear that 
rail privatisation has been a terrible deal for passengers and UK 
taxpayers, as further demonstrated recently with rail services on the East 
Coast Mainline needing to be brought under government control 
following the abject failure of the current franchise; 

 
(p) welcomes that the East Coast Mainline rail service will once again be ran 

publically, and hopes that the line is not returned to another private 

Page 46



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 17 of 31 
 

provider to once again provide a failed service; 
 
(q) notes that this Administration has called for greater powers for local 

authorities to determine the type of bus services that should be delivered 
locally, including the possibility of running bus services “in-house”; and 

 
(r) expresses its warm congratulations to the first directly elected mayor for 

the Sheffield City Region, Dan Jarvis M.P., and welcomes the 
opportunities that this may provide for bus re-regulation and greater 
regional transport integration. 

 

  
5.6.1 (NOTE: 1. Councillors Simon Clement-Jones, Bob Pullin, Richard Shaw, Adam 

Hanrahan, Mohammed Mahroof, Joe Otten, Colin Ross, Martin Smith, Roger 
Davison, Shaffaq Mohammed, Paul Scriven, Sue Alston, Cliff Woodcraft, Ian 
Auckland, Steve Ayris, Gail Smith, David Baker, Penny Baker and Mike Levery 
voted for paragraph (b) and against paragraphs (a) and (c) to (r) of the 
Substantive Motion, and asked for this to be recorded; 

  
 2. Councillors Kaltum Rivers, Douglas Johnson, Robert Murphy, Martin Phipps 

and Alison Teal voted for paragraphs (a) to (f), (i) to (n) and (p) to (r), and 
abstained from voting on paragraphs (g), (h) and (o) of the Substantive Motion, 
and asked for this to be recorded; and 

  
 3. Councillors Jack Clarkson, Keith Davis and John Booker voted for 

paragraphs (a) to (f) and (h) to (r), and abstained from voting on paragraph (g) 
of the Substantive Motion, and asked for this to be recorded.) 

  
 
6.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "OPPOSITION TO GOVERNMENT 
MEASURES TO IMPOSE FRACKING ON SHEFFIELD" - GIVEN BY 
COUNCILLOR MARK JONES AND TO BE SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR 
MOYA O'ROURKE 
 

6.1 It was moved by Councillor Mark Jones, and seconded by Councillor Moya 
O‟Rourke, that this Council:- 

  
 (a) believes local communities do not want fracking in their area and that 

the locally elected Labour Administration have supported our 
communities‟ ability to decide what the future of fracking should be in 
their areas, rather than having to endure the diktats from on high by an 
over-zealous Government;  

 
(b) supports the actions of local community groups, such as Sheffield 

Climate Alliance, Frack Free South Yorkshire and Mosborough Against 
Fracking in opposing the policy framework initiated by the Conservative 
and Liberal Democrat Coalition government in what this Council 
believed to be its wholly reckless and irresponsible dash for shale gas;  

 
(c) believes Britain urgently needs a renewable energy revolution and 

Page 47



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 18 of 31 
 

supports the position taken by the Labour Party calling on the 
Government to ban fracking, and focus on unlocking the jobs and 
growth that a low-carbon energy infrastructure can provide for our 
industry, workforce and communities; in contrast to the Conservative 
Party‟s apparent fixation on shale gas - regardless of evidence, public 
opinion or the impacts this will have on local communities; 

 
(d) notes with bitter disappointment that the Government have recently 

announced a series of measures to support the development of shale 
gas extraction which are being imposed on local communities, local 
councils and local wishes, to force through changes at the behest of 
fracking companies; 

 
(e) notes that at present, decisions on shale gas exploration planning 

applications have a statutory time frame of 16 weeks where an 
Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) is required, and that the stated 
aim of the new measures from the Department for Business, Energy & 
Industrial Strategy is supposedly in order to meet these time frames; 

 
(f) believes, however, that all applications where an EIA is required already 

have significant central government provisions over performance - 
including Right of Appeal against timely non-determination, call-ins, and 
special measures designation, and therefore begs the question that with 
such powers already in place why does fracking require more?; 

 
(g) contends that the emphasis and support for all types of planning 

applications should be a government priority, including addressing the 
long standing delays in the planning inspectorate, and, furthermore, as 
delays in the Planning Inspectorate system are a big problem on all 
fronts, believes it is likely that other schemes, such as prioritising 
housing and strategic infrastructure planning, will suffer delays if 
fracking is given special and preferential treatment; 

 
(h) believes that giving fracking special treatment will be counter-productive 

as it will reinforce public concerns that government wants to press on 
with fracking regardless of public opinion or evidence on the potential 
environmental and health impacts; 

 
(i) believes that the Government‟s measures appear to be a toxic 

combination of caving into the fracking industry and reinforcing existing 
bad policy, which will set a dangerous precedent in taking away local 
decision making on planning decisions; 

 
(j) contends that it is scandalous to take away local decision making 

powers and put it in the hands of government ministers and that such a 
change will likely see fracking unfairly imposed on areas against the will 
of local communities; and 

 
(k) reaffirms the Administration‟s commitment to not permitting fracking on 

Council-owned land and to reject approaches to do so, and laments that 

Page 48



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 19 of 31 
 

the Government‟s changes appear to make it increasingly hard for local 
authorities to exercise democratic oversight and control over the 
planning process. 

  
6.2 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Adam Hanrahan, seconded by 

Councillor Gail Smith, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be 
amended by:- 

  
 1. the deletion of paragraph (b) and the re-lettering of original paragraphs 

(c) to (k) as new paragraphs (b) to (j); and 
  
 2. the addition of new paragraphs (k) to (p) as follows:- 
  
 (k) notes the Liberal Democrats‟ May 2017 manifesto statement that: we 

“oppose fracking because of its adverse impact on climate change, the 
energy mix, and the local environment.”; 

 
(l) also notes the Lib Dem commitment to double green electricity 

generation to 60 percent by 2030; 
 
(m) supports the work that local residents‟ and campaign groups have 

undertaken within the City to highlight the impact of fracking on our 
natural environment; 

 
(n) notes the work done by Lib Dem councillors and campaigners in 

engaging with residents across the City to seek their views on fracking, 
in particular with a residents‟ survey where 1381 households responded 
with 86 percent against fracking; 

 
(o) contrasts this with the pro-fracking position held by the MP for 

Penistone and Stocksbridge who commented, “I don‟t think those fears 
are justified at all. I spent a number of years attending meetings, 
listening to both sides of the debate, including the Environment Agency, 
Public Health England and the Heath and Safely Executive, and I am 
absolutely convinced that with the right regulatory framework there is no 
reason to fear [fracking]”; and 

 
(p) therefore resolves that the Leader of the Council writes to the MP for 

Penistone and Stocksbridge setting out this Council‟s opposition to 
fracking and expressing our disappointment on the pro-fracking position 
that she has taken on this vital issue affecting our city‟s environment. 

  
6.3 It was then moved by Councillor Martin Phipps, seconded by Councillor Alison 

Teal, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended by the 
addition of new paragraphs (l) and (m) as follows:- 

  
 (l) congratulates the Labour Party on their new-found support for long 

standing local and national Green Party policies such as supporting 
renewable technology and opposing fracking; and 

 

Page 49



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 20 of 31 
 

(m) notes the action taking place up and down the country against fracking, 
and supports their right to peacefully protest against administrations 
unfairly imposing policy against the will of local communities. 

  
6.4 After contributions from four other Members, and following a right of reply from 

Councillor Mark Jones, the amendment moved by Councillor Adam Hanrahan 
was put to the vote and was negatived. 

  
6.4.1 (NOTE: Councillors Kaltum Rivers, Douglas Johnson, Robert Murphy, Martin 

Phipps and Alison Teal voted for paragraphs (o) and (p) of part 2 of the 
amendment and against part 1 and paragraphs (k) to (n) of part 2 of the 
amendment, and asked for this to be recorded.) 

  
6.5 The amendment moved by Councillor Martin Phipps was then put to the vote 

and was negatived, with the exception of the proposed new paragraph (m), 
which was carried. 

  
6.5.1 (NOTE: Councillors Bob Pullin, Richard Shaw, Adam Hanrahan, Mohammed 

Mahroof, Joe Otten, Colin Ross, Martin Smith, Roger Davison, Shaffaq 
Mohammed, Paul Scriven, Sue Alston, Cliff Woodcraft, Steve Ayris, Gail 
Smith, David Baker, Penny Baker and Mike Levery. voted for paragraph (m) 
and against paragraph (l) of the amendment, and asked for this to be 
recorded.) 

  
6.6 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 
  

 RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
 
(a) believes local communities do not want fracking in their area and that 

the locally elected Labour Administration have supported our 
communities‟ ability to decide what the future of fracking should be in 
their areas, rather than having to endure the diktats from on high by an 
over-zealous Government;  

 
(b) supports the actions of local community groups, such as Sheffield 

Climate Alliance, Frack Free South Yorkshire and Mosborough Against 
Fracking in opposing the policy framework initiated by the Conservative 
and Liberal Democrat Coalition government in what this Council 
believed to be its wholly reckless and irresponsible dash for shale gas;  

 
(c) believes Britain urgently needs a renewable energy revolution and 

supports the position taken by the Labour Party calling on the 
Government to ban fracking, and focus on unlocking the jobs and 
growth that a low-carbon energy infrastructure can provide for our 
industry, workforce and communities; in contrast to the Conservative 
Party‟s apparent fixation on shale gas - regardless of evidence, public 
opinion or the impacts this will have on local communities; 

 
(d) notes with bitter disappointment that the Government have recently 

Page 50



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 21 of 31 
 

announced a series of measures to support the development of shale 
gas extraction which are being imposed on local communities, local 
councils and local wishes, to force through changes at the behest of 
fracking companies; 

 
(e) notes that at present, decisions on shale gas exploration planning 

applications have a statutory time frame of 16 weeks where an 
Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) is required, and that the stated 
aim of the new measures from the Department for Business, Energy & 
Industrial Strategy is supposedly in order to meet these time frames; 

 
(f) believes, however, that all applications where an EIA is required already 

have significant central government provisions over performance - 
including Right of Appeal against timely non-determination, call-ins, and 
special measures designation, and therefore begs the question that with 
such powers already in place why does fracking require more?; 

 
(g) contends that the emphasis and support for all types of planning 

applications should be a government priority, including addressing the 
long standing delays in the planning inspectorate, and, furthermore, as 
delays in the Planning Inspectorate system are a big problem on all 
fronts, believes it is likely that other schemes, such as prioritising 
housing and strategic infrastructure planning, will suffer delays if 
fracking is given special and preferential treatment; 

 
(h) believes that giving fracking special treatment will be counter-productive 

as it will reinforce public concerns that government wants to press on 
with fracking regardless of public opinion or evidence on the potential 
environmental and health impacts; 

 
(i) believes that the Government‟s measures appear to be a toxic 

combination of caving into the fracking industry and reinforcing existing 
bad policy, which will set a dangerous precedent in taking away local 
decision making on planning decisions; 

 
(j) contends that it is scandalous to take away local decision making 

powers and put it in the hands of government ministers and that such a 
change will likely see fracking unfairly imposed on areas against the will 
of local communities; 

 
(k) reaffirms the Administration‟s commitment to not permitting fracking on 

Council-owned land and to reject approaches to do so, and laments that 
the Government‟s changes appear to make it increasingly hard for local 
authorities to exercise democratic oversight and control over the 
planning process; and 

 
(l) notes the action taking place up and down the country against fracking, 

and supports their right to peacefully protest against administrations 
unfairly imposing policy against the will of local communities. 

 
 

Page 51



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 22 of 31 
 

 

6.6.1 The votes on the Substantive Motion were ordered to be recorded and were as 
follows:- 

  
 For paragraphs (a) 

and (c) to (l) of the 
Substantive Motion 
(75) 

- The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Tony 
Downing) and Councillors Bob Pullin, Richard 
Shaw, Chris Rosling-Josephs, Ian Saunders, 
Sophie Wilson, Denise Fox, Bryan Lodge, 
Michelle Cook, Kaltum Rivers, Talib Hussain, 
Mark Jones, Douglas Johnson, Robert Murphy, 
Martin Phipps, Adam Hanrahan, Mohammed 
Mahroof, Anne Murphy, Mazher Iqbal, Mary Lea, 
Zahira Naz, Joe Otten, Colin Ross, Martin Smith, 
Andy Bainbridge, Moya O‟Rourke, Roger 
Davison, Shaffaq Mohammed, Paul Scriven, 
Abdul Khayum, Alan Law, Abtisam Mohamed, 
Sue Alston, Cliff Woodcraft, Lewis Dagnall, Cate 
McDonald, Chris Peace, Steve Ayris, Bob 
Johnson, George Lindars-Hammond, Josie 
Paszek, Lisa Banes, Terry Fox, Pat Midgley, 
David Barker, Gail Smith, Mohammad Maroof, 
Jim Steinke, Alison Teal, Julie Dore, Ben 
Miskell, Jack Scott, Mike Drabble, Dianne Hurst, 
Peter Rippon, Dawn Dale, Peter Price, Garry 
Weatherall, Mike Chaplin, Tony Damms, Jayne 
Dunn, David Baker, Penny Baker, Jack 
Clarkson, Keith Davis, Francyne Johnson, Olivia 
Blake, Ben Curran, Neale Gibson, John Booker, 
Adam Hurst, Mike Levery, Mick Rooney, Jackie 
Satur and Paul Wood. 

    
 Against paragraphs 

(a) and (c) to (l) of the 
Substantive Motion 
(0) 

- Nil 

    
 Abstained from voting 

on paragraphs (a) and 
(c) to (l) of the 
Substantive Motion 
(1) 

- The Lord Mayor (Councillor Magid Magid). 

    
 For paragraph (b) of 

the Substantive 
Motion (58) 

- The Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Tony 
Downing) and Councillors Chris Rosling-
Josephs, Ian Saunders, Sophie Wilson, Denise 
Fox, Bryan Lodge, Michelle Cook, Kaltum 
Rivers, Talib Hussain, Mark Jones, Douglas 
Johnson, Robert Murphy, Martin Phipps, Anne 
Murphy, Mazher Iqbal, Mary Lea, Zahira Naz, 
Andy Bainbridge, Moya O‟Rourke, Abdul 
Khayum, Alan Law, Abtisam Mohamed, Lewis 

Page 52



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 23 of 31 
 

Dagnall, Cate McDonald, Chris Peace, Bob 
Johnson, George Lindars-Hammond, Josie 
Paszek, Lisa Banes, Terry Fox, Pat Midgley, 
David Barker, Mohammad Maroof, Jim Steinke, 
Alison Teal, Julie Dore, Ben Miskell, Jack Scott, 
Mike Drabble, Dianne Hurst, Peter Rippon, 
Dawn Dale, Peter Price, Garry Weatherall, Mike 
Chaplin, Tony Damms, Jayne Dunn, Jack 
Clarkson, Keith Davis, Francyne Johnson, Olivia 
Blake, Ben Curran, Neale Gibson, John Booker, 
Adam Hurst, Mick Rooney, Jackie Satur and 
Paul Wood. 

    
 Against paragraph (b) 

of the Substantive 
Motion (17) 

- Councillors Bob Pullin, Richard Shaw, Adam 
Hanrahan, Mohammed Mahroof, Joe Otten, 
Colin Ross, Martin Smith, Roger Davison, 
Shaffaq Mohammed, Paul Scriven, Sue Alston, 
Cliff Woodcraft, Steve Ayris, Gail Smith, David 
Baker, Penny Baker and Mike Levery. 

    
 Abstained from voting 

on paragraph (b) of 
the Substantive 
Motion (1) 

- The Lord Mayor (Councillor Magid Magid). 

 
 
7.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "MORE OPEN AND TRANSPARENT 
DECISION MAKING AT SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL" - GIVEN BY 
COUNCILLOR SHAFFAQ MOHAMMED AND TO BE SECONDED BY 
COUNCILLOR ROBERT MURPHY 
 

7.1 It was moved by Councillor Shaffaq Mohammed, and seconded by Councillor 
Robert Murphy, that this Council:- 

  
 (a) thanks everyone involved in the running of this year's local elections and 

thanks the people of Sheffield for exercising their right to vote; 
 
(b) notes that this Council moved to a strong leader and cabinet model of 

governance under provisions within the Local Government Act 2000 
introduced by the Rt. Hon. Tony Blair‟s government, and believes that 
recently it has been clear that there is a disconnect between the 
Executive and backbench councillors at this Council; 

 
(c) notes that under the powers of the Localism Act 2011, Sheffield City 

Council has the ability to move from the current system of strong leader 
and cabinet to a committee system of governance; 

 
(d) notes that since the Localism Act 2011 came into law a number of 

councils have chosen to move to a committee system and more are 
considering the change; 

Page 53



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 24 of 31 
 

 
(e) notes that when the Liberal Democrats were in control of Sheffield City 

Council, the Localism Act had not yet come into law and therefore were 
unable to use its powers to change the council structure at the time;  

 
(f) notes that even Labour councillors have called in decisions made by 

their own Cabinet and Cabinet Members, for example, the executive 
decisions made on the development of Central Library and Mount 
Pleasant; 

 
(g) believes that, currently, too many decisions that affect local people are 

not transparent and are made away from public scrutiny, and 
introducing a committee system would mean that decision making 
would be more transparent and help to restore public confidence in 
Sheffield City Council; 

 
(h) resolves to investigate a switch to a committee system which would give 

more control of decision making to all elected councillors and not just a 
selected few; allowing local communities a more direct path to decisions 
made about their futures; and  

 
(i) believes that there is a better, different way for a city council to operate 

and that this motion demonstrates that it is possible, even in difficult 
times, to be responsive and work with local people. 

  
7.2 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Tony Damms, seconded by Councillor 

Ian Saunders, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended 
by the deletion of paragraphs (b) to (i) and the addition of new paragraphs (b) 
to (g) as follows:- 

  
 (b) notes that the Local Government Association (LGA) and the Centre for 

Public Scrutiny (CPS) estimates that around only 30 councils operate 
under the committee system out of the 418 principal (unitary, upper and 
second tier) councils in the UK and, furthermore, this includes a 
proportion of councils who have always operated under the committee 
system (such as small shire districts between 2000 and 2012 who were 
permitted to retain their committee arrangements); 

 
(c) further notes that the Centre for Public Scrutiny believe more authorities 

have moved from the committee system to the strong leader/Cabinet 
model than the other way round in recent years and that they estimate 
this trend is likely to increase further; 

 
(d) notes that all Core Cities and authorities in Yorkshire use the Strong 

Leader Model – except those who have a directly elected Mayor; 
 
(e) believes that a committee system is no more transparent or conducive 

to open decision making than the current system, a position agreed with 
by the CPS, and regrets that despite claiming that moving to a 
committee system would increase transparency, and public scrutiny of 

Page 54



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 25 of 31 
 

decision making, the mover of the Motion fails to articulate how a 
committee system would improve this; 

 
(f) notes that the fact that councillors from across the chamber have called-

in issues for scrutiny shows that there is a robust mechanism for 
oversight and scrutiny available to Members; and 

 
(g) further, notes that this Administration has a strong record of 

continuously improving transparency and public engagement and 
highlights that last year‟s budget consultation had significantly increased 
participation from the public, and notes the on-going changes and 
reviewing of Council meetings to improve public engagement. 

  
7.3 It was then moved by Councillor Douglas Johnson, and formally seconded by 

Councillor Martin Phipps, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be 
amended by the addition of a new paragraph (f) as follows, and the re-lettering 
of original paragraphs (f) to (i) as new paragraphs (g) to (j):- 

  
 (f) notes that only 4 out of 10 voters supported the current Administration, 

yet all 10 members of the Cabinet have been selected from the ruling 
group; 

  
7.4 After contributions from five other Members, and following a right of reply from 

Councillor Shaffaq Mohammed, the amendment moved by Councillor Tony 
Damms was put to the vote and was carried. 

  
7.5 The amendment moved by Councillor Douglas Johnson was then put to the 

vote and was negatived. 
  
7.6 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 
  

 RESOLVED: That this Council:- 
 
(a) thanks everyone involved in the running of this year's local elections and 

thanks the people of Sheffield for exercising their right to vote; 
 
(b) notes that the Local Government Association (LGA) and the Centre for 

Public Scrutiny (CPS) estimates that around only 30 councils operate 
under the committee system out of the 418 principal (unitary, upper and 
second tier) councils in the UK and, furthermore, this includes a 
proportion of councils who have always operated under the committee 
system (such as small shire districts between 2000 and 2012 who were 
permitted to retain their committee arrangements); 

 
(c) further notes that the Centre for Public Scrutiny believe more authorities 

have moved from the committee system to the strong leader/Cabinet 
model than the other way round in recent years and that they estimate 
this trend is likely to increase further; 

 

Page 55



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 26 of 31 
 

(d) notes that all Core Cities and authorities in Yorkshire use the Strong 
Leader Model – except those who have a directly elected Mayor; 

 
(e) believes that a committee system is no more transparent or conducive 

to open decision making than the current system, a position agreed with 
by the CPS, and regrets that despite claiming that moving to a 
committee system would increase transparency, and public scrutiny of 
decision making, the mover of the Motion fails to articulate how a 
committee system would improve this; 

 
(f) notes that the fact that councillors from across the chamber have called-

in issues for scrutiny shows that there is a robust mechanism for 
oversight and scrutiny available to Members; and 

 
(g) further, notes that this Administration has a strong record of 

continuously improving transparency and public engagement and 
highlights that last year‟s budget consultation had significantly increased 
participation from the public, and notes the on-going changes and 
reviewing of Council meetings to improve public engagement. 

 

  
7.6.1 (NOTE: 1. Councillors Bob Pullin, Richard Shaw, Adam Hanrahan, Mohammed 

Mahroof, Joe Otten, Colin Ross, Martin Smith, Roger Davison, Shaffaq 
Mohammed, Paul Scriven, Sue Alston, Cliff Woodcraft, Steve Ayris, Gail 
Smith, David Baker, Penny Baker and Mike Levery voted for paragraph (a) and 
against paragraphs (b) to (g) of the Substantive Motion, and asked for this to 
be recorded: and 

  
 2. Councillors Kaltum Rivers, Douglas Johnson, Robert Murphy, Martin Phipps 

and Alison Teal voted for paragraph (a), against paragraphs (e) and (g), and 
abstained from voting on paragraphs (b), (c), (d) and (f) of the Substantive 
Motion, and asked for this to be recorded.) 

  
 
8.   
 

NOTICE OF MOTION REGARDING "PROMOTING HEALTH AND 
REDUCING CONSUMPTION" - GIVEN BY COUNCILLOR DOUGLAS 
JOHNSON AND TO BE SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR KALTUM RIVERS 
 

8.1 It was moved by Councillor Douglas Johnson, and formally seconded by 
Councillor Kaltum Rivers, that this Council:- 

  
 (a) notes the world-wide scourge of modern society consuming and 

disposing of large amounts of single-use plastic; 
 
(b) notes the recent analysis of public health data by the Local Government 

Association showing that one in 25 school children aged 10 or 11 are 
severely obese; 

 
(c) notes that tooth decay in children is a strong indicator of inequality and 

has a serious adverse effect on childhood health and life chances, 

Page 56



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 27 of 31 
 

leading to school absence and unnecessary surgery; 
 
(d) notes that Green Group councillors asked for the Healthier Communities 

and Adult Social Care Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee to 
look at the issue of dental health in 2017; 

 
(e) notes that the Green Group budget amendment in 2018 included a 

proposal to introduce drinking water fountains in the city centre and 
major parks, helping to improve health and reduce consumption of 
disposable plastics; and  

 
(f) therefore welcomes the introduction of new publicly accessible drinking 

fountains in Sheffield City Centre. 
  
8.2 Whereupon, it was moved by Councillor Mary Lea, seconded by Councillor 

Dawn Dale, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended by 
the deletion of paragraphs (d) to (f) and the addition of new paragraphs (d) to 
(h) as follows:- 

  
 (d) notes that this Administration has recently outlined a series of measures 

to tackle sugar, junk food and obesity in Sheffield; 
 
(e) further notes that in March, Cabinet took the decision to approve the 

Food and Wellbeing Strategy which includes a measure to resist 
sponsorship from junk food companies and to stop such adverts near 
schools, where the Council has the power to do so; 

 
(f) notes that this Administration‟s Food and Wellbeing Strategy aims to 

create a low sugar Sheffield to reduce diet-related ill-health including 
obesity, cardiovascular disease, type 2 diabetes and tooth decay, and 
that, in particular, the Strategy sets out to tackle obesity and children‟s 
dental health in the 20 percent most deprived areas of Sheffield; 

 
(g) notes that the plan will also see healthier food and drinks in Council 

leisure centres and park cafes, and that this builds on the successful 
GULP (Giving Up Loving Pop) campaign in schools, which encourages 
young people, their families and school staff to give up sugary drinks; 
and 

 
(h) believes that public provision of drinking water is an important initiative, 

both for the reduction of single-use plastics and for health, and 
acknowledges the Green Party‟s praise of the Labour administration‟s 
work towards this. 

  
8.3 It was then moved by Councillor Colin Ross, seconded by Councillor Penny 

Baker, as an amendment, that the Motion now submitted be amended by the 
deletion of all the words after the words “That this Council” and the addition of 
the following words:- 

  
  

Page 57



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 28 of 31 
 

 (a) notes that the Liberal Democrats‟ May 2017 manifesto included pledges 
to:- 

  
 (i) pass a Zero Waste Act, including legally-binding targets for 

reducing net consumption of key natural resources, and 
introducing incentives for businesses to improve resource 
efficiency; 

 
(ii) benefit consumers by promoting better product design to improve 

reparability, reuse and recycling; 
 
(iii) establish a statutory waste recycling target of 70% in England 

and extend separate food waste collections to at least 90% of 
homes by 2022; and 

 
(iv) build on the success of our plastic bag charge, by introducing a 

5p charge on disposable coffee cups to reduce waste; 
  
 (b) notes that the Liberal Democrat 2018 local manifesto included 

commitments to:- 
  
 (i) introduce a „Keep Sheffield Green‟ fund – an additional pot of 

money for local communities to decide how best they would like 
to invest in their environment, e.g. street tree retention, cycle 
routes, recycling; 

 
(ii) extend the recycling of plastics and make it easier for residents to 

recycle plastic, e.g. by requiring the Council‟s contractor to 
undertake more separation; 

 
(iii) investigate reverse-vending for plastic bottle returns and 

encouraging water bottle re-filling points in public places and 
businesses, and explore the collection of food waste for 
composting; and 

 
(iv) increase the number of green bin collections in the autumn and 

promote the take up of the service to households across the city; 
and 

  
 (c) therefore asks this Administration to “put the protection of the 

environment at the heart of policies across all areas of local 
government”. 

  
8.4 After contributions from four other Members, and following a right of reply from 

Councillor Douglas Johnson, the amendment moved by Councillor Mary Lea 
was put to the vote and was carried. 

  
8.4.1 (NOTE: Councillors Jack Clarkson, Keith Davis and John Booker voted for 

paragraphs (d) to (g) of the amendment, and abstained from voting on 
paragraph (h) of the amendment, and asked for this to be recorded.) 

Page 58



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 29 of 31 
 

  
8.5 The amendment moved by Councillor Colin Ross was then put to the vote and 

was negatived, with the exception of the proposed new paragraph (c), which 
was carried. 

  
8.6 The original Motion, as amended, was then put as a Substantive Motion in the 

following form and carried:- 
  

 RESOLVED: That this Council:-   
 
(a) notes the world-wide scourge of modern society consuming and 

disposing of large amounts of single-use plastic; 
 
(b) notes the recent analysis of public health data by the Local Government 

Association showing that one in 25 school children aged 10 or 11 are 
severely obese; 

 
(c) notes that tooth decay in children is a strong indicator of inequality and 

has a serious adverse effect on childhood health and life chances, 
leading to school absence and unnecessary surgery; 

 
(d)  notes that this Administration has recently outlined a series of measures 

to tackle sugar, junk food and obesity in Sheffield; 
 
(e) further notes that in March, Cabinet took the decision to approve the 

Food and Wellbeing Strategy which includes a measure to resist 
sponsorship from junk food companies and to stop such adverts near 
schools, where the Council has the power to do so; 

 
(f) notes that this Administration‟s Food and Wellbeing Strategy aims to 

create a low sugar Sheffield to reduce diet-related ill-health including 
obesity, cardiovascular disease, type 2 diabetes and tooth decay, and 
that, in particular, the Strategy sets out to tackle obesity and children‟s 
dental health in the 20 percent most deprived areas of Sheffield; 

 
(g) notes that the plan will also see healthier food and drinks in Council 

leisure centres and park cafes, and that this builds on the successful 
GULP (Giving Up Loving Pop) campaign in schools, which encourages 
young people, their families and school staff to give up sugary drinks; 

 
(h) believes that public provision of drinking water is an important initiative, 

both for the reduction of single-use plastics and for health, and 
acknowledges the Green Party‟s praise of the Labour administration‟s 
work towards this; and 

 
(i) therefore, asks this Administration to “put the protection of the 

environment at the heart of policies across all areas of local 
government”. 

 

 

Page 59



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 30 of 31 
 

9.   
 

APPOINTMENT OF HONORARY RECORDER OF SHEFFIELD 
 

9.1 RESOLVED: On the Motion of Councillor Julie Dore, seconded by Councillor 
Shaffaq Mohammed, that this Council appoints His Honour Judge Jeremy 
William Richardson QC to the position of Honorary Recorder for Sheffield with 
effect from 6th June 2018 for a period no longer than the duration of the 
Judge‟s tenure of the post of Resident Judge at Sheffield Combined Court 
Centre, in accordance with the details outlined in the report of the Chief 
Executive now submitted. 

  
 
10.   
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETINGS 
 

10.1 RESOLVED: On the Motion of Councillor Peter Rippon, seconded by 
Councillor Dianne Hurst, that the minutes of the ordinary meeting of the 
Council held on 28th March 2018 and the annual meeting of the Council held 
on 16th May 2018, be approved as true and accurate records. 

  
 
11.   
 

REPRESENTATION, DELEGATED AUTHORITY AND RELATED ISSUES 
 

11.1 RESOLVED: On the Motion of Councillor Peter Rippon, seconded by 
Councillor Dianne Hurst, that:- 

  
 (a) approval be given to the following changes to the memberships of 

Committees, Boards, etc.:- 
  

 Children, Young People and 
Family Support Scrutiny and 
Policy Development Committee 

- Remove Councillor Adam Hurst to 
create a vacancy 

    
 Healthier Communities and Adult 

Social Care Scrutiny and Policy 
Development Committee 

- Councillor Adam Hurst to fill a 
vacancy 

    
 Appeals and Collective Disputes 

Committee 
- Remove Councillor Talib Hussain to 

create a vacancy 
    
 Southey Ward Local Area 

Partnership Lead Member 
- Councillor Mike Chaplin to replace 

Councillor Tony Damms 
    
 Corporate Parenting Board - Remove Councillor Mike Drabble to 

create a vacancy 
    
 (b) representatives be appointed to serve on other bodies as follows:- 
  
 Learning Disabilities Partnership 

Board 
- Councillor Jackie Drayton to replace 

Councillor Chris Peace, and 
Councillor Gail Smith to fill a vacancy 

    

Page 60



Council 6.06.2018 

Page 31 of 31 
 

 Sheffield Football Trust - Councillor Anne Murphy to fill a 
vacancy 

    
 University Technical College 

Trust Board 
- Councillor Mike Drabble to replace 

Councillor Dawn Dale 
 
 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	9 Annual Scrutiny Report 2017-18
	Scrutiny Annual Report 2017-18

	10 Minutes Of Previous Council Meeting

